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PART I
Item 1.

Business

General
Central Federal Bancshares, Inc., a Missouri corporation (“Central Federal Bancshares” or the “Company”),
was incorporated in 2015 to be the holding company for Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla,
Rolla, Missouri (“Central Federal”), upon completion of the conversion of Central Federal from the mutual to the
stock form of organization. (In certain instances where appropriate, the terms “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Central
Federal Bancshares and/or Central Federal, as indicated by context.) On January 12, 2016, the mutual to stock
conversion was completed and Central Federal became the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Also on that
date, the Company issued 1,719,250 shares of its common stock at a price of $10.00 per share, including the sale of
143,042 shares to the employee stock ownership plan in the stock offering, and it contributed 68,770 shares of
common stock and $100,000 in cash to the Central Federal Community Foundation.
The Company’s primary business activity is the ownership of the outstanding capital stock of Central Federal.
The Company will not own or lease any property but will instead use the premises, equipment and other property of
Central Federal with the payment of appropriate rental fees, as required by applicable law and regulations, under the
terms of an expense allocation agreement that Central Federal Bancshares and Central Federal have entered into.
The expense allocation agreement generally provides that Central Federal Bancshares will pay to Central Federal,
on a quarterly basis, fees for its use of Central Federal’s premises, furniture, equipment and employees in an amount
to be determined by the board of directors of Central Federal Bancshares and Central Federal. In addition, the
Company and Central Federal have also entered into a tax allocation agreement as a result of their status as
members of an affiliated group for purposes of the Internal Revenue Code. The tax allocation agreement generally
provides that Central Federal Bancshares will file consolidated federal income tax returns with Central Federal and
its subsidiaries. The tax allocation agreement also formalizes procedures for allocating the consolidated tax liability
of the group among its members and establishes procedures for the future payments by Central Federal to Central
Federal Bancshares for tax liabilities attributable to Central Federal and its subsidiaries.
Central Federal is a community-oriented financial institution, dedicated to serving the financial service needs
of customers within its market area, which generally consists of Phelps County, Missouri, although it also services
customers in the contiguous Missouri counties of Dent, Texas, Crawford, Pulaski and Maries. We offer a variety of
loan and deposit products to meet the borrowing needs of our customers. Our real estate loans consist primarily of
residential loans, including owner-occupied and nonowner-occupied one- to four-family residential loans. We also
offer commercial and multi-family real estate loans, commercial business loans and consumer loans, including
automobile and recreational vehicle loans. We currently operate out of our office in Rolla, Missouri. We are subject
to extensive regulation, examination and supervision by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, our primary
federal regulator, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), our deposit insurer. At December 31,
2015, which was prior to the completion of the conversion and related stock offering, Central Federal had total
assets of $80.9 million, total deposits of $66.6 million and total equity of $13.7 million.
Market Area
We are headquartered, and maintain our sole office, in Rolla, Missouri, and we consider our primary deposit
and lending market to be Phelps County, Missouri. Rolla is located along Interstate 44 in south-central Missouri,
less than 100 miles from major Missouri population centers of St. Louis, Jefferson City, Columbia and Springfield.
With a population of approximately 19,926, according to U.S. Census Bureau estimates, Rolla is the largest city,
and center of government, of Phelps County, which has a population of approximately 44,847, also according to
U.S. Census Bureau estimates. Rolla is home to Missouri University of Science and Technology, a public, leading
technological research university within Missouri that has an enrollment as of Fall 2015 of approximately 8,886
students and faculty and staff (both full- and part time) of approximately 1,485. Other major employers in Rolla and
Phelps County include Phelps County Regional Medical Center and other health care service providers, as well as
Walmart Stores,
1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Inc. (including a regional distribution center in St. James, Missouri) and various agencies of the federal and state
governments.
Demographic and economic growth data provide additional information regarding our market area. According
to U.S. Census Bureau estimates, Rolla experienced population growth of 1.9% between 2010 and 2014, while the
population of Phelps County declined by approximately 0.7% during the same period (which is the most recent
period for which U.S. Census Bureau data is available for both areas). For comparison, during the same period, the
population growth rate for the State of Missouri was estimated at 1.2% and the national growth rate was estimated at
3.3%.
Compared to the State of Missouri and national levels, Phelps County and Rolla generally report lower income
levels. Median household income for 2014 (in 2014 dollars) was $41,942 for Phelps County and $32,478 for Rolla,
compared to $47,764 for Missouri and $53,482 for the United States as a whole. Per capita incomes for 2014 (also
in 2014 dollars) for Phelps County and Rolla were $20,900 and $17,876, respectively, compared to $26,006 and
$28,555 for Missouri and the United States, respectively. The unemployment rates for Missouri and Phelps County
were 4.4% and 4.0%, respectively, in December 2015 (compared to 5.8% and 6.0%, respectively, as of May 2015),
below the national unemployment rate of 5.0% and 5.5% at each of December and May 2015, according to the U.S.
Bureau of Labor Statistics. Over the past several years, the unemployment rate for Phelps County has been declining
as the state and national unemployment rates have declined, with the highest level of unemployment in Phelps
County (9.2%) occurring in February 2010, approximately the same time that national unemployment rates were
peaking.
Competition
We face significant competition for the attraction of deposits and origination of loans. Our most direct
competition for deposits has historically come from the many financial institutions operating in our primary market
area and from other financial service companies such as securities brokerage firms, credit unions and insurance
companies. We also face competition for investors’ funds from money market funds, mutual funds and other
corporate and government securities. In addition, banks owned by large national and regional holding companies
and other community-based banks also operate in our primary market area. Most of these institutions are larger than
us and, therefore, may have greater resources.
Our competition for loans comes primarily from financial institutions, including credit unions, in our primary
market area and from other financial service providers, such as mortgage companies and mortgage brokers.
Competition for loans also comes from non-depository financial services companies entering the mortgage market,
such as insurance companies, securities companies and specialty finance companies.
We expect competition to increase in the future as a result of legislative, regulatory and technological changes
and the continuing trend of consolidation in the financial services industry. Technological advances, for example,
have lowered barriers to entry, allowed banks to expand their geographic reach by providing services over the
Internet, and made it possible for non-depository institutions to offer products and services that traditionally have
been provided by banks. Changes in federal law now permit affiliation among banks, securities firms and insurance
companies, which promotes a competitive environment in the financial services industry. Competition for deposits
and the origination of loans could limit our growth in the future.
Lending Activities
General. Lending is our principal business activity, and our loan portfolio constitutes the largest portion of
our assets and is the predominant source of our interest income. Management believes that Central Federal has a
history of loans to credit-worthy individuals secured by their personal residences. The largest segment of our loan
portfolio is real estate loans, consisting primarily of residential real estate loans (including one- to four-family and
home equity loans), and, to a lesser extent, commercial and multi-family real estate loans, commercial business
loans, and consumer loans. We are a portfolio lender and retain in our portfolio substantially all loans we originate.
The following is a description of the loans we offer and our lending policies. Virtually all of our secured loans,
including in particular our one- to four-family residential real estate loans, are secured by properties located in our
primary lending area, which we define as Phelps County, Missouri. Any exception
2
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to our loan policies must be approved by the individuals or committee having authority to approve a comparable
loan that conformed fully with our lending policies.
Residential Real Estate Loans. At December 31, 2015, we had $31.7 million in residential real estate loans,
which represented 63.2% of our total loan portfolio, comprised of owner-occupied one- to four-family loans,
nonowner-occupied one- to four-family loans, one- to four-family construction loans, home equity lines of credit
and other junior lien loans, and land loans. The following table provides more information about our residential real
estate loan portfolio at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:
December 31, 2015
Category

Amount

Percent of
Gross Loans

December 31, 2014
Amount



Percent of
Gross Loans 

(Dollars in thousands)

Owner-occupied one- to four-family
Nonowner-occupied one- to four-family
Construction, one- to four-family
Home equity line of credit and junior liens
Land

$17,909
10,177
1,234
1,504
881

35.7%
20.3
2.4
3.0
1.8

$18,786
11,759
718
1,771
1,145

35.8%
22.4
1.3
3.4
2.2

$31,705

63.2%

$34,179

65.1%

Our origination of residential real estate loans enables borrowers to purchase or refinance existing one- to fourfamily residences, virtually all of which are located in our primary market area.
We offer adjustable-rate and fixed-rate residential real estate loans with terms of up to 30 years. Because we
have not historically sold any of the one- to four-family residential real estate loans that we have originated, we have
not originated these loans in conformance with either Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac underwriting guidelines, although
we believe our underwriting guidelines are substantially similar. We generally do not originate or fund fixed-rate
mortgage loans to hold in our loan portfolio at the present time; however, we have previously made long-term fixedrate loans as part of our lending program and we expect to originate and fund fixed-rate loans for retention in our
portfolio as part of our operating strategy to increase our loan portfolio. Approximately $14.0 million of such loans
remain in our portfolio as of December 31, 2015. To the extent we currently participate in the origination of longterm fixed-rate residential real estate loans, we do so under the terms of arrangements we have entered into with
another financial institution. Under this arrangement, we assist in the completion of a loan application and obtain
certain financial information about the applicant on behalf of the originating institution, which then underwrites the
loan pursuant to its own lending policies, and, if it approves the loan, funds the loan directly. We receive a fee for
our services. Currently, we do not offer loans insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, although these types of loans may be obtained by our customers through the
loan arrangements described above. We determine the loan fees, interest rates and other provisions of the mortgage
loans we originate, fund and hold in our portfolio based on our own pricing criteria and competitive market
conditions.
While residential real estate loans are generally originated with up to 30-year terms, such loans typically
remain outstanding for substantially shorter periods because borrowers often prepay their loans in full either upon
sale of the property pledged as security or upon refinancing the original loan. Therefore, average loan maturity is a
function of, among other factors, the level of purchase and sale activity in the real estate market, prevailing interest
rates and the interest rates payable on outstanding loans on a regular basis. We do not offer residential real estate
loans with negative amortization, and we do not make interest only residential real estate loans.
Although adjustable-rate mortgage loans may reduce to an extent our vulnerability to changes in market
interest rates because they periodically reprice, as interest rates increase the required payments due from the
borrower also increase (subject to rate caps), increasing the potential for default by the borrower. At the same time,
the ability of the borrower to repay the loan and the marketability of the underlying collateral may be adversely
affected by higher interest rates. Upward adjustments of the contractual interest
3
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rate are also limited by the maximum periodic and lifetime rate adjustments permitted by our loan documents. As a
result, the effectiveness of adjustable-rate mortgage loans in compensating for changes in general interest rates may
be limited during periods of rapidly rising interest rates.
We require an escrow for funds to pay property insurance and real estate taxes for the owner-occupied home
mortgage loans we make, and loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess of 90% require private mortgage insurance.
We have observed a significant demand for residential real property used for investment or income purposes, which
demand arises primarily from a high demand for off-campus housing for students attending the Missouri University
of Science and Technology. We underwrite and price one- to four-family residential real estate loans that are
nonowner-occupied as commercial loans; such loans are subject to a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 80% and are
offered at fixed rates and with a term of one, three or five years and with payments based on a 25-year amortization.
Under our loan policy, which has been approved by our board, we require all properties securing mortgage
loans to be appraised by a licensed, independent appraiser. We also require title insurance on all first mortgage
loans. Borrowers must obtain hazard insurance, and flood insurance is required for all residential loans located in
flood hazard areas. We do not offer, and have not offered, sub-prime or no-documentation mortgage loans.
We also originate loans for the construction of one- to four-family homes. At December 31, 2015, one- to fourfamily construction loans were $1.2 million. Our construction loans generally provide for interest only payments
during the construction phase, which is usually up to 12 months. At the end of the construction phase, the loan
generally converts to a permanent mortgage loan. Loans generally can be made with a maximum loan to value ratio
of 85% on residential construction, based on the appraised value as if complete. Before making a commitment to
fund a construction loan, we require an appraisal of the property by an independent, licensed appraiser. We also will
generally require an inspection of the property before disbursement of funds during the term of the construction
loan. Finally, we also originate loans to individuals for the purpose of purchasing land for future construction of
one- to four-family residences, and we offer land loans under the same general terms as nonowner-occupied one- to
four-family homes described above (fixed interest rates and one, three or five year maturities, with payments
amortized based on a 25-year schedule). We limit the loan-to-value ratio to a maximum of 65%.
We make home equity lines of credit and, on occasion, other junior lien loans. Home equity lines of credit are
made for terms of up to 20 years at adjustable rates, with the amount of the home equity line, when combined with
the amount outstanding under any first mortgage, limited to an 80% loan to value ratio. All of our home equity lines
of credit currently offered are adjustable-rate loans with rates tied to the prime rate as reported in The Wall Street
Journal. Our home equity lines of credit are secured by residential real estate but we do not necessarily also maintain
the first mortgage on the real estate. As of December 31, 2015, we had $1.5 million of home equity and other junior
lien loans.
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate Loans. At December 31, 2015, we had $16.1 million in
commercial and multi-family real estate loans, which represented 32.1% of our total loan portfolio, comprised of
loans and lines of credit secured by commercial real estate, including multi-family residential real estate and owneroccupied commercial property. The following table provides more information about our commercial and multifamily real estate loan portfolio at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014:
December 31, 2015
Percent of
Gross Loans

December 31, 2014
Amount

Category

Amount

Multi-Family
Multi-Family Line of Credit
Multi-Family Construction
Commercial Real Estate
Commercial Real Estate Lines of Credit
Commercial Real Estate Construction

$ 8,762
—
777
5,675
902
—

17.4%
—
1.6
11.3
1.8
—

$ 9,634
35
—
5,587
629
108

18.4%
0.1
—
10.6
1.2
0.2

$16,116

32.1%

$15,993

30.5%

(Dollars in thousands)
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We offer loans secured by multi-family residential real property, including loans to finance the construction of
multi-family residences, and also commercial real estate loans and lines of credit, including commercial real estate
construction loans.
Multi-family residential real property loans are offered at fixed rates, with a one, three or five year maturity,
with payments on a 25-year amortization schedule, and are subject to a loan-to-value ratio of 80% of the lesser of
appraised value or the purchase price. We also offer multi-family residential construction loans and commercial
construction loans with a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 80%. Finally, we offer commercial (non-residential) real
estate loans with a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 80% of the lower of the appraised value or the purchase price of
the property, with one, three or five year terms and payments on a 25-year amortization schedule. Commercial real
estate lines of credit are available with a one year maturity.
We require all properties securing commercial mortgage loans to be appraised by a licensed, independent
appraiser. We also require title insurance on all first mortgage loans. Borrowers must obtain hazard insurance, and
flood insurance is required for all commercial loans located in flood hazard areas. Almost all of our commercial real
estate loans are collateralized by office buildings, mixed-use properties and owner-occupied, commercial real estate
located in Phelps County, Missouri.
Commercial Business Loans. We make a relatively limited amount of commercial business loans that are
either secured by assets other than real property or that are not secured. As of December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014, we had commercial business loans of $2.0 million, or 3.9% of our total loan portfolio and $1.9 million, or
3.6%, of our total loan portfolio, respectively. For secured commercial loans and lines of credit, the interest rate and
other terms are determined based upon the financial condition, including net worth, of the borrower as well as the
type of collateral to secure the loan. Collateral for secured commercial business loans generally consists of the
borrower’s accounts receivable, inventory and furniture, fixtures and equipment, although deposit accounts at
Central Federal may also be pledged. We make unsecured commercial extensions of credit if the financial condition
of the borrower is sufficient to support the loan; most of our unsecured commercial credits consist of lines of credit.
We are currently evaluating supplementing our commercial business loan originations with some limited purchases
of the guaranteed portion of Small Business Administration (SBA) loans, which are short term loans with fixed
rates. We anticipate that commercial business loans may become a slightly larger component of our loan portfolio
composition through originations supplemented with purchases of SBA loans.
Consumer and Other Loans. Our consumer lending consists primarily of loans secured by used automobiles
or other personal vehicles and, to a lesser extent, unsecured personal loans and loans secured by deposit accounts
(share loans) at Central Federal. As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had consumer and other
loans of $418,000, or 0.8% of our total loan portfolio, and $432,000, or 0.8% of our total loan portfolio,
respectively. The following table provides additional information relating to our consumer lending.
December 31, 2015
Category

Amount

Percent of
Gross Loans

December 31, 2014
Amount

(Dollars in thousands)

Personal Auto Loans
Personal Unsecured Loans
Share Loans
Overdraft
Other Secured Loans

$ 271
59
42
18
28

0.5%
0.1
0.1
—
0.1

$ 227
56
81
21
47

0.4%
0.1
0.2
—
0.1

$ 418

0.8%

$ 432

0.8%

Loan Underwriting and Collections
Loan Approval Procedures and Authority. Pursuant to applicable law, the aggregate amount of loans that we
are permitted to make to any one borrower or a group of related borrowers is generally limited to 15% of Central
Federal’s unimpaired capital and surplus (25% if the amount in excess of 15% is secured by
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“readily marketable collateral” or 30% for certain residential development loans). In November 2012, the Office of
the Comptroller of the Currency approved Central Federal’s application to participate in the supplemental lending
limits program (“SLLP”). Under the SLLP, Central Federal may extend credit for an additional 10% of their
unimpaired capital and surplus for one- to four-family residential real estate and small business loans. The amount
we can lend under this limit increased as a result of the completion of the offering in January 2016 and the
contribution of 50% of the net offering proceeds to Central Federal. At December 31, 2015, our regulatory loans-toone-borrower limit under the SLLP was $3.5 million. As of December 31, 2015, our three largest commercial real
estate lending relationships consisted of multiple extensions of credit, each secured by real property, to a group of
related borrowers with an aggregate principal balance of approximately $2.1 million; an extension of credit to one
borrower, secured by multiple properties, of with an aggregate principal balance of approximately $1.9 million; and
a loan secured by church property with an aggregate principal balance of approximately $1.8 million. At
December 31, 2015, all of these loans were performing in accordance with their repayment terms.
Our lending is subject to written underwriting standards and origination procedures. Decisions on loan
applications are made on the basis of written applications submitted by the prospective borrowers and property
valuations (consistent with our appraisal policy) prepared by outside independent licensed appraisers, as well as
internal evaluations where permitted by regulations. The loan applications are designed primarily to determine the
borrower’s ability to repay the requested loan, and the more significant items on the application are verified through
use of credit reports, financial statements and tax returns.
We have a loan committee comprised of our president, all loan officers (including our executive vice president
— lending) and loan administration personnel. Minutes of the meetings of the loan committee are provided to our
board on a monthly basis. Our executive vice president–lending and our three lending officers each has the authority
to approve extensions of credit in amounts that, when aggregated with all other extensions of credit to the same or
related borrowers, do not exceed $500,000. Our loan committee may approve loans in amounts that, when
aggregated with all other extensions of credit to the same or related borrowers, do not exceed $750,000; all other
loans must be approved by our board of directors.
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate, Nonowner-Occupied Residential Real Estate and Commercial
Business Loans. We consider a number of factors in originating commercial real estate loans, including multifamily real estate and nonowner-occupied, one- to four-family residential real estate loans, as well as other
commercial business loans. We evaluate the qualifications and financial condition of the borrower, including credit
history, profitability and expertise, as well as the value and condition of property securing the loan. Under our
lending policy, positive cash flow is a requirement for all commercial loans, and we generally require a borrower,
irrespective of the income and debt service capacity of assets collateralizing the loan, to demonstrate a minimum
debt service coverage ratio (the ratio of net operating income to debt service) of 1.2 to 1. We also consider the
financial resources of the borrower, for real estate loans, the borrower’s experience in owning or managing similar
property and the borrower’s payment history with us and other financial institutions. In evaluating property securing
the loan, the factors we consider include the net operating income of the mortgaged property before debt service and
depreciation, the ratio of the loan amount to the appraised value of the mortgaged property and the debt service
coverage ratio (the ratio of net operating income to debt service). All commercial business loans (including multifamily and nonowner-occupied real estate) are reviewed at least annually by Central Federal’s management. The
review is based on the borrower (that is, all loans to one borrower are reviewed at the same time), and current
financial information is obtained from the borrower and its principals at the time of the review. Loans that exceed
$250,000 and that require an annual review are presented to and discussed at a meeting of our internal loan
committee, loans that exceed $500,000 that require an annual review are presented to and discussed with our board
of directors. All commercial and multi-family real estate loans, as well as all owner- and nonowner- occupied
residential real estate loans, are appraised by outside independent, licensed appraisers. Personal guarantees are
generally obtained from the principals of commercial and multi-family real estate loans.
Commercial loans, whether or not secured by real estate, entail greater credit risks compared to owneroccupied one- to four-family residential real estate loans because they typically involve larger loan balances
concentrated with single borrowers or groups of related borrowers. In addition, the payment of loans secured by
income-producing properties typically depends on the successful operation of the property,
6
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as repayment of the loan generally is dependent, in large part, on sufficient income from the property to cover
operating expenses and debt service. Changes in economic conditions that are not in the control of the borrower or
lender could affect the value of the collateral for the loan or the future cash flow of the property. Additionally, any
decline in real estate values may be more pronounced for commercial real estate than residential properties.
Collection Procedures. When a borrower fails to make required payments on a loan, we take a number of
steps to induce the borrower to cure the delinquency and restore the loan to current status. We generally send a
written notice of non-payment to the borrower between 15 and 30 days (depending on any payment grace period
associated with the loan) following the missed payment and will follow up with a telephone call to the borrower if
payment has not been made. If the loan remains unpaid, a further seriously past due notice is generated and mailed
to the borrower, and we will make another telephone call, or an in-person visit, to the borrower. If the loan continues
to remain unpaid and satisfactory payment arrangements have not been made with us, we send a letter demanding
payment within 30 days; if we do not receive a satisfactory response, we may, in our discretion, turn the matter over
to our attorney for further action, including the initiation of foreclosure proceedings.
The accrual of interest on real estate and commercial business loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90
days past due unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Personal loans are typically charged off
no later than 180 days past due. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are
placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.
Loans returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually are brought current, the
borrower has demonstrated a period of sustained performance and future payments are reasonably assured. A
sustained period of repayment performance generally would be a minimum of six months. Management reports loan
delinquencies to the board of directors on a monthly basis. Additional information with respect to our loans is
available under “ Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Balance Sheet Analysis as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. ”
Loan Commitments. We issue commitments for one- to four-family residential real estate loans conditioned
upon the occurrence of certain events. Commitments to originate mortgage loans are legally binding agreements to
lend to our customers. Most of our loan commitments expire after 30 days. See “ Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements .”
Construction Loans. Construction financing is generally considered to involve a higher degree of risk of loss
than long-term financing on improved, occupied real estate. Risk of loss on a construction loan depends largely
upon the accuracy of the initial estimate of the property’s value at completion of construction and the estimated cost
of construction. During the construction phase, a number of factors could result in delays and cost overruns. If the
estimate of construction costs proves to be inaccurate, we may be required to advance funds beyond the amount
originally committed to permit completion of the building. If the estimate of value proves to be inaccurate, we may
be confronted, at or before the maturity of the loan, with a building having a value which is insufficient to assure
full repayment if liquidation is required. If we are forced to foreclose on a building before or at completion due to a
default, we may be unable to recover all of the unpaid balance of, and accrued interest on, the loan as well as related
foreclosure and holding costs. For construction loans secured by residential real estate (including loans we consider
to be commercial loans), we disburse funds upon request and upon an inspection of the property by Central Federal
personnel. For larger commercial loans, we generally advance funds only upon receipt of certification from an
engineer or architect.
Home Equity Lines of Credit. In the case of home equity lines of credit, real estate values may be reduced to
a level that is insufficient to cover the outstanding loan balance after accounting for the first mortgage loan balance.
Loan collections depend on the borrower’s continuing financial stability, and, therefore, are likely to be adversely
affected by various factors, including job loss, divorce, illness or personal bankruptcy. Furthermore, the application
of various federal and state laws, including federal and state bankruptcy and insolvency laws, may limit the amount
that can be recovered on such loans.
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Home equity lines of credit have greater risk than one- to four-family residential real estate loans secured by
first mortgages, primarily the risk that the collateral will be insufficient to compensate us for loan losses and costs of
foreclosure. When customers default on their loans, we attempt to foreclose on the property and resell the property
as soon as possible to minimize foreclosure and carrying costs utilizing the policies and procedures described above.
The value of the collateral, however, may not be sufficient to compensate us for the amount of the unpaid loan and
we may be unsuccessful in recovering the remaining balance from those customers. Decreases in real estate values
could adversely affect the value of property used as collateral for our loans.
Investment Activities
Our board of directors has the overall responsibility for the investment portfolio, including approval of the
investment policy. Our primary investment objectives are: (i) to provide and maintain liquidity; (ii) to fully employ
the available funds of Central Federal; (iii) to earn an average rate of return on invested funds competitive with
comparable institutions; (iv) to manage interest rate risk; and (v) to limit credit and interest rate risk. Our chief
executive officer is responsible for the implementation of our policy and monitoring our investment performance.
Our board of directors reviews the status of our investment portfolio on a monthly basis.
We have legal authority to invest in various types of liquid assets, including U.S. Treasury obligations,
securities of various government-sponsored agencies and of state and municipal governments, mortgage-backed
securities and certificates of deposit of federally insured institutions. Within certain regulatory limits, we also may
invest a portion of our assets in other permissible securities. As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Des
Moines, we also are required to maintain an investment in the stock of that institution.
We have an investment portfolio comprised of $2.9 million of certificates of deposits in other financial
institutions and available for sale securities. At December 31, 2015, our investment portfolio was comprised
primarily of certificates of deposit in other financial institutions, each in the amount of $248,000 and each at a
different insured depository institution. We also have investments, categorized as available-for-sale, in a municipal
obligation with a fair value of $414,000 and stock of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with a fair
value of $22,000 as of December 31, 2015. The municipal obligation has a coupon rate of 3.25%, matures in
March 2033 and is callable in March 2023. Our investment strategy has remained consistent with our current
philosophy of maintaining excess cash in interest-bearing deposits held in other financial institutions; we have and
may continue to, on a limited basis, invest in debt securities. In addition to our investment portfolio, at
December 31, 2015, we held $77,000 of Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines stock, carried at cost.
Deposit Activities and Other Sources of Funds
General. Deposits have traditionally been our primary source of funds for use in lending and investment
activities. We have not historically used borrowings and we had no outstanding borrowings at December 31, 2015
or at December 31, 2014. In addition, we receive funds from scheduled loan payments, loan prepayments, retained
earnings and income on earning assets. While scheduled loan payments and income on earning assets are relatively
stable sources of funds, deposit inflows and outflows can vary widely and are influenced by prevailing interest rates,
market conditions and levels of competition.
Deposit Accounts. Deposits generally are attracted from within our market area through the offering of a
broad selection of deposit instruments, including non-interest-bearing demand deposits (such as checking accounts),
interest-bearing demand accounts (such as NOW and money market accounts), statement savings accounts and
certificates of deposit. On occasion, Central Federal will accept deposits, typically in the form of certificate of
deposit in denominations of $100,000 or greater, from other financial institutions. We do not have a formal program
or policy with respect to such deposits, which are typically initiated by the other institution; rather, we will accept
the deposits if, when the opportunity to accept the deposit arises, our management determines that the deposit is
appropriate for us. As of December 31, 2015, the amount of deposits from such other financial institutions was $5.2
million. Deposit account terms vary according to the minimum balance required, the time periods the funds must
remain on deposit and the interest rate, among other factors.
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Interest rates, maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal penalties are established on a periodic basis. Deposit
rates and terms are based primarily on current operating strategies and market rates, liquidity requirements, rates
paid by competitors and growth goals. The flow of deposits is influenced significantly by general economic
conditions, changes in interest rates and competition. Our ability to gather deposits is affected by the competitive
market in which we operate, which includes numerous financial institutions of varying sizes offering a wide range
of products. We believe that deposits are a stable source of funds, but our ability to attract and maintain deposits at
favorable rates will be affected by market conditions, including competition and prevailing interest rates.
Borrowings. As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines, Central Federal is eligible to
obtain advances upon the security of the Federal Home Loan Bank common stock owned and certain residential real
estate loans, provided certain standards related to credit-worthiness have been met. Federal Home Loan Bank
advances are available pursuant to several credit programs, each of which has its own interest rate and range of
maturities. Central Federal also is eligible, upon the satisfaction of collateral security and other requirements, to
borrow from the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis. While we have obtained Federal Home Loan Bank advances in
the past, we had no outstanding borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank or Federal Reserve Bank at
December 31, 2015 or December 31, 2014.
Personnel
As of December 31, 2015, we had 14 full-time equivalent employees, none of whom is represented by a
collective bargaining unit. We believe we have a good relationship with our employees.
Subsidiaries
We have no subsidiaries other than Central Federal.
Regulation and Supervision
General
Central Federal, as a federal savings association, is subject to extensive regulation, examination and
supervision by the OCC, as its primary federal regulator, and by the FDIC as the insurer of its deposits. Its deposit
accounts are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC. Central Federal must file
reports with the OCC concerning its activities and financial condition in addition to obtaining regulatory approvals
before entering into certain transactions such as mergers with, or acquisitions of, other financial institutions. There
are periodic examinations by the OCC to evaluate Central Federal’s safety and soundness and compliance with
various regulatory requirements. This regulatory structure is intended primarily for the protection of the insurance
fund and depositors. The regulatory structure also gives the regulatory authorities extensive discretion in connection
with their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination policies, including policies with respect to the
classification of assets and the establishment of an adequate allowance for loan losses for regulatory purposes.
As a savings and loan holding company, Central Federal Bancshares is subject to examination and supervision
by, and is required to file certain reports with, the Federal Reserve Board.
The Dodd-Frank Act made extensive changes to the regulation of Central Federal. Under the Dodd-Frank Act,
the Office of Thrift Supervision was eliminated and responsibility for the supervision and regulation of federal
savings associations such as Central Federal was transferred to the OCC on July 21, 2011. The OCC is the agency
that is primarily responsible for the regulation and supervision of national banks. Additionally, the Dodd-Frank Act
created a new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau as an independent bureau of the Federal Reserve Board. The
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau assumed responsibility for the implementation of the federal financial
consumer protection and fair lending laws and regulations and has authority to impose new requirements. However,
institutions of less than $10 billion in assets, such as Central Federal Bancshares, will continue to be examined for
compliance with consumer protection and fair lending laws and regulations by, and be subject to the enforcement
authority of, their prudential regulators, which is the OCC in the case of Central Federal.
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Certain of the laws and regulatory requirements that are applicable to Central Federal and Central Federal
Bancshares are described below. This description of statutes and regulations is not intended to be a complete
explanation of such statutes and regulations or their effects on Central Federal and Central Federal Bancshares, and
is qualified in its entirety by reference to applicable laws and regulations..
Federal Banking Regulation
Business Activities. The activities of federal savings associations, such as Central Federal, are governed by
federal laws and regulations. Those laws and regulations delineate the nature and extent of the business activities in
which federal savings associations may engage. In particular, certain lending authority for federal savings
associations, e.g. , commercial, nonresidential real property loans and consumer loans, is limited to a specified
percentage of the association’s capital or assets.
Capital Requirements. Central Federal is subject to minimum regulatory capital requirements imposed under
OCC regulations, and Central Federal Bancshares is subject to consolidated regulatory capital requirements imposed
under Federal Reserve Board regulations.
Prior to 2014, the applicable capital regulations required savings associations such as Central Federal to meet
three minimum capital standards: a 1.5% tangible capital to total assets ratio, a 4% Tier 1 capital to total assets
leverage ratio (3% for institutions receiving the highest rating on the CAMELS examination rating system) and an
8% risk-based capital ratio. In addition, the prompt corrective action standards discussed below also established, in
effect, a minimum 2% tangible capital standard, a 4% leverage ratio (3% for institutions receiving the highest rating
on the CAMELS system) and, together with the risk-based capital standard itself, a 4% Tier 1 risk-based capital
standard. The regulations also required that, in meeting the tangible, leverage and risk-based capital standards,
institutions must generally deduct investments in and loans to subsidiaries engaged in activities as principal that are
not permissible for a national bank.
In July 2013, in response to provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act and the revised standards of the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision, commonly called Basel III, the federal banking agencies, including the OCC
and the Federal Reserve Board, adopted new capital rules that took effect on January 1, 2015. These rules included
new risk-based capital and leverage ratios and revisions to the definition of what constitutes “capital” for purposes
of calculating those ratios. The rules also, for the first time, imposed consolidated regulatory capital requirements on
savings and loan holding companies. The minimum capital level requirements applicable to Central Federal
Bancshares and Central Federal under the new rules are: (i) a common equity Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 4.5%;
(ii) a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6% (increased from 4%); (iii) a total capital ratio of 8% (unchanged from
current rules); and (iv) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 4% for all institutions. The rules also established a “capital
conservation buffer” of 2.5% above the new regulatory minimum capital requirements, which must consist entirely
of common equity Tier 1 capital and would result, in effect, in the following minimum ratios: (i) a common equity
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 7.0%, (ii) a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 8.5%, and (iii) a total capital ratio of
10.5%. The new capital conservation buffer requirement began a phase-on period in January 2016 at .625% of riskweighted assets and will increase by that amount each year until fully implemented in January 2019. An institution
will be subject to limitations on paying dividends, engaging in share repurchases, and paying discretionary bonuses
if its capital level falls below the buffer amount. These limitations will establish a maximum percentage of eligible
retained income that could be utilized for such actions.
The capital rules require a number of changes to regulatory capital deductions and adjustments, subject to a
transition period. Among other changes, the rules provide for a one-time, permanent opt-out from the treatment
under such rules of certain items of accumulated other comprehensive income. The rules generally require the
recognition in regulatory capital calculations of unrealized gains and losses. If an institution elects to opt-out, then
the institution may continue treating accumulated other comprehensive income items in a manner consistent with
the prior regulatory capital rules. The Company has made this opt-out election. The rules modify the calculation of
risk-weighted assets, although they generally continue the treatment of residential mortgages under the prior rules.
Under the rules, an institution may assign a 50% risk weight to a first-lien residential mortgage exposure that: (i) is
secured by property that is owner-occupied or rented, (ii) is made in accordance with “prudent underwriting
standards,” (iii) is not 90
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days or more past due or in nonaccrual status, and (iv) is not restructured or modified. Other first-lien residential
exposures, as well as junior-lien exposures, are assigned a 100% risk weight.
The exposure amount for on-balance sheet assets is generally the carrying value of the exposure as determined
under GAAP. If a banking organization has elected to opt out of the accumulated other comprehensive income
provisions discussed above, the exposure amount for available for sale or held-to-maturity debt securities is the
carrying value (including accrued but unpaid interest and fees) of the exposure, less any net unrealized gains plus
any unrealized losses. Further, the rules retain the prior risk-weighting rules for exposures to debt directly and
unconditionally guaranteed by U.S. federal government and its agencies. Such exposures receive a 0% risk weight.
Exposures conditionally guaranteed by the federal government, Federal Reserve Board or a federal government
agency would receive a 20% risk weight. Further, the capital rules assign a 20% risk weight to non-equity exposures
to government-sponsored entities (GSEs) and a 100% risk weight to preferred stock issued by a GSE. The rules
define a GSE as an entity established or chartered by the federal government to serve public purposes but whose
debt obligations are not “explicitly guaranteed” by the full faith and credit of the federal government. Institutions
must assign a 20% risk weight to general obligations of a public sector entity (for example, a state, local authority or
other governmental subdivision below the sovereign level) that is organized under U.S. law and a 50% risk weight
for a revenue obligation of such an entity.
The OCC also has authority to establish individual minimum capital requirements in appropriate cases upon a
determination that an institution’s capital level is or may become inadequate in light of the particular risks or
circumstances.
Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action. Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications for
insured depository institutions, such as Central Federal, and their holding companies: well capitalized, adequately
capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized. The OCC is required to
take certain supervisory actions against undercapitalized institutions, with the severity of the action depending upon
the institution’s degree of undercapitalization. In addition, numerous mandatory supervisory actions become
immediately applicable to an undercapitalized institution, including, but not limited to, increased monitoring by
regulators and restrictions on growth, capital distributions and expansion. The OCC could also take any one of a
number of discretionary supervisory actions, including the issuance of a capital directive and the replacement of
senior executive officers and directors. Significantly and critically undercapitalized institutions are subject to
additional mandatory and discretionary measures.
Insurance of Deposit Accounts. Central Federal’s deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit
Insurance Fund of the FDIC. Deposit insurance per account owner is currently $250,000. Under the FDIC’s riskbased assessment system, insured institutions are assigned a risk category based on supervisory evaluations,
regulatory capital levels and certain other factors. An institution’s assessment rate depends upon the category to
which it is assigned, and certain adjustments specified by FDIC regulations. Institutions deemed less risky pay lower
assessments. The FDIC may adjust the scale uniformly, except that no adjustment can deviate more than two basis
points from the base scale without notice and comment. No institution may pay a dividend if in default of the federal
deposit insurance assessment.
The Dodd-Frank Act required the FDIC to revise its procedures to base its assessments upon each insured
institution’s total assets less tangible equity instead of deposits. The FDIC finalized a rule, effective April 1, 2011,
that set the assessment range at 2.5 to 45 basis points of total assets less tangible equity.
The FDIC has authority to increase insurance assessments. A significant increase in insurance premiums would
likely have an adverse effect on the operating expenses and results of operations of Central Federal. Management
cannot predict what insurance assessment rates will be in the future.
Loans to One Borrower. Federal law provides that savings associations are generally subject to the limits on
loans to one borrower applicable to national banks. Generally, subject to certain exceptions, a savings association
may not make a loan or extend credit to a single or related group of borrowers in excess of 15% of its unimpaired
capital and surplus. An additional amount may be lent, equal to 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus, if secured by
specified readily-marketable collateral. At December 31, 2015, our regulatory loans-to-one borrower limitation
under the supplemental lending limits program approved
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by the OCC was $3.5 million. All loans to one borrower that aggregate over $500,000 are reviewed by a Central
Federal commercial loan officer and are presented to the board of directors annually. Further, our management
reviews and recommends to the board of directors through our loan committee such lesser limitations on the
extension of credit to a single borrower or borrowing entity as it feels prudent and in the best interest of Central
Federal based on the current economic, competitive environment and the circumstances of Central Federal.
Qualified Thrift Lender Test. Federal law requires savings associations to meet a qualified thrift lender test.
Under the test, a savings association is required to either qualify as a “domestic building and loan association” under
the Internal Revenue Code or maintain at least 65% of its “portfolio assets” (total assets less: (i) specified liquid
assets up to 20% of total assets; (ii) intangibles, including goodwill; and (iii) the value of property used to conduct
business) in certain “qualified thrift investments” (primarily residential mortgages and related investments,
including certain mortgage-backed securities but also including education, credit card and small business loans) in at
least nine months out of each 12-month period.
A savings association that fails the qualified thrift lender test is subject to certain operating restrictions, such as
making any new investments or engaging in any new activity not allowed for both a national bank and a savings
association, establishing any new branch office unless establishment would be allowable for a national bank, and
paying dividends unless such payment would be both allowable for a national bank and necessary to meet the
obligations of the association’s holding company. The Dodd-Frank Act also specifies that failing the qualified thrift
lender test is a violation of law that could result in an enforcement action and dividend limitations. As of
December 31, 2015, Central Federal met the qualified thrift lender test.
Limitation on Capital Distributions. Federal regulations impose limitations upon all capital distributions by
a savings association, including cash dividends, payments to repurchase the association’s shares and payments to
shareholders of another institution in a cash-out merger. Under the regulations, an application to and the prior
approval of the OCC is required before any capital distribution if (i) the institution does not meet the criteria for
“expedited treatment” of applications under OCC regulations (i.e., generally, examination and Community
Reinvestment Act ratings in the two top categories); (ii) the total capital distributions for the calendar year exceed
net income for that year plus the amount of retained net income for the preceding two years; (iii) the institution
would be undercapitalized following the distribution; or (iv) the distribution would otherwise be contrary to a
statute, regulation or agreement with the OCC. If an application is not required, the institution must still provide 30
days’ prior written notice to, and receive the non-objection of the Federal Reserve Board for the capital distribution
if, like Central Federal, it is a subsidiary of a holding company, as well as an informational notice filing to the OCC.
If Central Federal’s capital ever fell below its regulatory requirements or the OCC notified it that it was in need of
increased supervision, its ability to make capital distributions could be restricted. In addition, the OCC could
prohibit a proposed capital distribution by any institution, which would otherwise be permitted by the regulation, if
the OCC determines that such distribution would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice.
Community Reinvestment Act. All federal savings associations have a responsibility under the Community
Reinvestment Act and related regulations to help meet the credit needs of their communities, including low- and
moderate-income neighborhoods. An institution’s failure to satisfactorily comply with the provisions of the
Community Reinvestment Act could result in denials of regulatory applications. Responsibility for administering the
Community Reinvestment Act, unlike other fair lending laws, is not being transferred to the Consumer Financial
Protection Bureau. Central Federal received a “satisfactory” Community Reinvestment Act rating in its most
recently completed examination.
Assessments. Central Federal is required to pay assessments to the OCC to fund the agency’s operations. The
general assessments, paid on a semi-annual basis, are computed upon an association’s total assets, including
consolidated subsidiaries, as reported in the association’s latest quarterly financial report. The assessments paid by
Central Federal for the year ended December 31, 2015 totaled approximately $37,466.
Transactions with Related Parties. Federal law limits Central Federal’s authority to engage in transactions
with “affiliates” ( e.g. , any entity that controls or is under common control with Central Federal, including Central
Federal Bancshares and any of its other subsidiaries). The aggregate amount of
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covered transactions with any individual affiliate is limited to 10% of the capital and surplus of the savings
association. The aggregate amount of covered transactions with all affiliates is limited to 20% of the savings
association’s capital and surplus. Certain transactions with affiliates are required to be secured by collateral in an
amount and of a type specified by federal law. The purchase of low quality assets from affiliates is generally
prohibited. Transactions with affiliates must generally be on terms and under circumstances that are at least as
favorable to the institution as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with non-affiliated companies.
In addition, savings associations are prohibited from lending to any affiliate that is engaged in activities that are not
permissible for bank holding companies, and no savings association may purchase the securities of any affiliate
other than a subsidiary.
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits loans by Central Federal Bancshares to its executive
officers and directors. However, the law contains a specific exception for loans by a depository institution to its
executive officers and directors in compliance with federal banking laws. Under such laws, Central Federal’s
authority to extend credit to executive officers, directors and 10% shareholders (“insiders”), as well as entities such
persons control, is limited. The laws limit both the individual and aggregate amount of loans that Central Federal
may make to insiders based, in part, on Central Federal’s capital level, and requires that certain board approval
procedures be followed. Such loans are required to be made on terms substantially the same as those offered to
unaffiliated individuals and may not involve more than the normal risk of repayment. There is an exception for
loans made pursuant to a benefit or compensation program that is widely available to all employees of the institution
and does not give preference to insiders over other employees. Loans to executive officers are subject to additional
limitations based on the type of loan involved.
Enforcement. The OCC currently has primary enforcement responsibility over savings associations and has
authority to bring actions against the institution and all institution-affiliated parties, including directors, officers,
shareholders, and any attorneys, appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in wrongful
actions likely to have an adverse effect on an insured institution. Formal enforcement action may range from the
issuance of a capital directive or cease and desist order to removal of officers and/or directors to requiring
receivership, conservatorship or termination of deposit insurance. Civil penalties cover a wide range of violations
and can amount to $25,000 per day, or even $1.0 million per day in especially egregious cases. Additionally, the
FDIC has the authority to recommend to the OCC that enforcement action be taken with respect to a particular
savings association. If action is not taken by the OCC, the FDIC has authority to take such action under certain
circumstances. Federal law also establishes criminal penalties for certain violations.
Federal Home Loan Bank System. Central Federal is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System,
which consists of 11 regional Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides a central credit
facility primarily for member institutions. Central Federal, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Des
Moines, is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in that Federal Home Loan Bank. Central Federal was
in compliance with this requirement at December 31, 2015 with an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock
with a book value of $77,000.
Federal Reserve System. The Federal Reserve Board regulations require savings associations to maintain
non-interest-earning reserves against their transaction accounts (primarily Negotiable Order of Withdrawal (NOW)
and regular checking accounts). The regulations provided that reserves be maintained against aggregate transaction
accounts as follows: a 3% reserve ratio is assessed on net transaction accounts from $15.2 million up to and
including $110.2 million; and a 10% reserve ratio is applied above $110.2 million. The first $15.2 million of
otherwise reservable balances (subject to adjustments by the Federal Reserve Board) are exempted from the reserve
requirements.
Incentive Compensation. Guidelines adopted by the federal banking agencies pursuant to the Federal
Deposit Insurance Act prohibit excessive compensation as an unsafe and unsound practice and describe
compensation as excessive when the amounts paid are unreasonable or disproportionate to the services performed
by an executive officer, employee, director or principal stockholder.
The Federal Reserve Board has issued comprehensive guidance on incentive compensation policies intended to
ensure that the incentive compensation policies of banking organizations do not undermine the safety and soundness
of such organizations by encouraging excessive risk-taking. The guidance is based
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upon the key principles that a financial institution’s incentive compensation arrangements should (i) provide
incentives that do not encourage risk-taking beyond the organization’s ability to effectively identity and manage
risks; (ii) be compatible with effective internal controls and risk management; and (iii) be supported by strong
corporate governance, including active and effective oversight by the institution’s board of directors. Any
deficiencies in compensation practices that are identified may be incorporated into the institution’s supervisory
ratings, which can affect its ability to make acquisitions or perform other actions. Enforcement actions may be taken
against an institution if its incentive compensation arrangements or related risk-management control or governance
processes pose a risk to the institution’s safety and soundness and the institution is not taking prompt and effective
measures to correct the deficiencies.
Other Regulations
Central Federal’s operations are also subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions, such as, but not
limited to, the:
•

Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers;

•

Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, requiring financial institutions to provide information to enable
the public and public officials to determine whether a financial institution is fulfilling its obligation to
help meet the housing needs of the community it serves;

•

Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed or other prohibited
factors in extending credit;

•

Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1978, governing the use and provision of information to credit reporting
agencies;

•

Fair Debt Collection Act, governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by collection
agencies; and

•

Rules and regulations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of implementing
such federal laws.

The operations of Central Federal also are subject to the:
•

Right to Financial Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain the confidentiality of consumer
financial records and prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial
records;

•

Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E promulgated thereunder, which govern automatic
deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts and customers’ rights and liabilities arising from the
use of automated teller machines and other electronic banking services;

•

Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act (also known as Check 21), which gives “substitute checks,” such
as digital check images and copies made from that image, the same legal standing as the original paper
check;

•

Title III of The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept
and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (referred to as the USA PATRIOT Act), and the related regulations
of the Federal Reserve Board, which require savings associations operating in the United States to
develop new anti-money laundering compliance programs (including a customer identification program
that must be incorporated into the AML compliance program), due diligence policies and controls to
ensure the detection and reporting of money laundering; and

•

The Bank Secrecy Act of 1970, which requires financial institutions in the United States to keep records
of cash purchases of negotiable instruments, file reports of cash purchases of negotiable instruments
exceeding a daily amount of $10,000 or more and to report suspicious activity that might signify money
laundering, tax evasion, or other criminal activities.
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Holding Company Regulation
General. As a savings and loan holding company, Central Federal Bancshares is subject to Federal Reserve
Board regulations, examinations, supervision, reporting requirements and regulations regarding its activities.
Among other things, this authority permits the Federal Reserve Board to restrict or prohibit activities that are
determined to be a serious risk to Central Federal.
Pursuant to federal statutes, regulations and policy, a savings and loan holding company such as Central
Federal Bancshares may generally engage in the activities permitted for financial holding companies under Section
4(k) of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, and certain other activities that have been authorized
for savings and loan holding companies by regulation.
Federal law prohibits a savings and loan holding company from, directly or indirectly or through one or more
subsidiaries, acquiring more than 5% of the voting stock of another savings association, or savings and loan holding
company thereof, without prior written approval of the Federal Reserve Board or from acquiring or retaining, with
certain exceptions, more than 5% of a non-subsidiary holding company or savings association. A savings and loan
holding company is also prohibited from acquiring more than 5% of a company engaged in activities other than
those authorized by federal law or acquiring or retaining control of a depository institution that is not insured by the
FDIC. In evaluating applications by holding companies to acquire savings associations, the Federal Reserve Board
must consider the financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the company and institution involved,
the effect of the acquisition on the risk to the insurance funds, the convenience and needs of the community and
competitive factors.
The Federal Reserve Board is prohibited from approving any acquisition that would result in a multiple savings
and loan holding company controlling savings associations in more than one state, except: (i) the approval of
interstate supervisory acquisitions by savings and loan holding companies; and (ii) the acquisition of a savings
association in another state if the laws of the state of the target savings association specifically permit such
acquisitions. The states vary in the extent to which they permit interstate savings and loan holding company
acquisitions.
Capital Requirements. Savings and loan holding companies historically have not been subject to
consolidated regulatory capital requirements. However, in July 2013, the Federal Reserve Board approved a new
rule that implemented the “Basel III” regulatory capital reforms and changes required by the Dodd-Frank Act. The
final rule established consolidated capital requirements for many savings and loan holding companies, including
Central Federal Bancshares. See “ Regulation and Supervision — Federal Banking Regulation — Capital
Requirements .”
Source of Strength. The Dodd-Frank Act also extended the Federal Reserve Board’s “source of strength”
doctrine to savings and loan holding companies such as Central Federal Bancshares. The Federal Reserve Board has
issued regulations implementing the “source of strength” policy requiring that holding companies act as a source of
strength to their subsidiary depository institutions by providing capital, liquidity and other support in times of
financial stress.
Dividends and Stock Repurchases. The Federal Reserve Board has the power to prohibit payment of
dividends by savings and loan holding companies if their actions constitute unsafe or unsound practices. The
Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement on the payment of cash dividends by bank holding companies
and savings and loan holding companies which expresses the Federal Reserve Board’s view that a holding company
should pay cash dividends only to the extent that the company’s net income for the past year is sufficient to cover
both the cash dividends and a rate of earnings retention that is consistent with the company’s capital needs, asset
quality and overall financial condition. The Federal Reserve Board also indicated that it would be inappropriate for a
holding company experiencing serious financial problems to borrow funds to pay dividends. Under the prompt
corrective action regulations, the Federal Reserve Board may prohibit a savings and loan holding company from
paying any dividends if the holding company’s bank subsidiary is classified as “undercapitalized.”
Federal Reserve Board policy also provides that a holding company should inform the Federal Reserve Board
supervisory staff prior to redeeming or repurchasing common stock or perpetual preferred stock if the holding
company is experiencing financial weaknesses or if the repurchase or redemption would result
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in a net reduction, as of the end of a quarter, in the amount of such equity instruments outstanding compared with
the beginning of the quarter in which the redemption or repurchase occurred.
Acquisition of Central Federal Bancshares. Under the federal Change in Bank Control Act, a notice must be
submitted to the Federal Reserve Board if any person (including a company), or group acting in concert, seeks to
acquire direct or indirect “control” of a savings and loan holding company or savings association. Under certain
circumstances, a change of control may occur, and prior notice is required, upon the acquisition of 10% or more of
the outstanding voting stock of the company or institution, unless the Federal Reserve Board has found that the
acquisition will not result in a change of control. A change in control definitively occurs upon the acquisition of
25% or more of the company’s outstanding voting stock. Under the Change in Control Act, the Federal Reserve
Board generally has 60 days from the filing of a complete notice to act, taking into consideration certain factors,
including the financial and managerial resources of the acquirer and the anti-trust effects of the acquisition. Any
company that acquires control would then be subject to regulation as a savings and loan holding company.
Emerging Growth Company Status
The JOBS Act, which was enacted in April 2012, has made numerous changes to the federal securities laws to
facilitate access to capital markets. Under the JOBS Act, a company with total annual gross revenues of less than
$1.0 billion during its most recently completed fiscal year qualifies as an “emerging growth company.” Central
Federal Bancshares qualifies as an emerging growth company under the JOBS Act.
An “emerging growth company” may choose not to hold stockholder votes to approve annual executive
compensation (more frequently referred to as “say-on-pay” votes) or executive compensation payable in connection
with a merger (more frequently referred to as “say-on-golden parachute” votes). Such a company also may present
only two years of audited financial statements and only two years of related Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in a public offering prospectus. An emerging growth company
also is not subject to the requirement that its auditors attest to the effectiveness of the company’s internal control
over financial reporting, and can provide scaled disclosure regarding executive compensation; accordingly, Central
Federal Bancshares is not subject to the auditor attestation requirement or additional executive compensation
disclosure so long as it remains a “smaller reporting company” under SEC regulations (generally less than $75
million of voting and non-voting equity held by non-affiliates). The JOBS Act also provides that an emerging
growth company can take advantage of an extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting
standards. Thus, an emerging growth company can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those
standards would otherwise apply to private companies. Central Federal Bancshares has elected to avail itself of this
extended transition period.
A company loses emerging growth company status on the earlier of: (i) the last day of the fiscal year of the
company during which it had total annual gross revenues of $1.0 billion or more; (ii) the last day of the fiscal year
of the issuer following the fifth anniversary of the date of the first sale of common equity securities of the company
pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act; (iii) the date on which such company has,
during the previous three-year period, issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt; or (iv) the date on
which such company is deemed to be a “large accelerated filer” under SEC regulations (generally, at least $700
million of voting and non-voting equity held by non-affiliates).
Forward-Looking Statements
Statements included in this report and in our future filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, in
our press releases, and in oral statements made with the approval of an authorized executive officer, which are not
historical or current facts, are “forward-looking statements” made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from historical earnings and those presently anticipated or projected. These
forward-looking statements are sometimes identified by the use of terms and phrases such as “believe,” “should,”
“expect,” “project,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “aim,” “intend,” “plan,” “will,” “can,” “may,” or similar expressions
elsewhere in this report. Forward-looking statements include:
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•

statements of our goals, intentions and expectations;

•

statements regarding our business plans, prospects, growth and operating strategies;

•

statements regarding the quality of our loan and investment portfolios; and

•

estimates of our risks and future costs and benefits.

Such statements are based on management’s current views and assumptions, and involve risks and
uncertainties that could affect expected results. Those risks and uncertainties include but are not limited to the
following:
•

general economic conditions, either nationally or in our primary market area, that are worse than
expected;

•

changes in the interest rate environment that reduce our interest margins or reduce the fair value of
financial instruments;

•

credit risks of lending activities, including changes in the level and trend of loan delinquencies and writeoffs and in our allowance for loan losses and provision for loan losses;

•

our ability to implement our strategic plans;

•

changes in our organization, compensation and benefit plans, and our ability to attract and retain key
members of our senior management team and to address staffing needs in response to product demand or
to implement our strategic plans;

•

the use of estimates in determining fair value of certain of our assets, which may prove to be incorrect and
result in significant declines in valuations;

•

fluctuations in the demand for loans, which may be affected by the number of unsold homes, land and
other properties in our market areas and by any declines in the value of real estate in our market area;

•

our ability to attract and maintain deposits and our success in introducing new financial products;

•

significant increases in our loan losses, including as a result of our inability to resolve classified and nonperforming assets or reduce risks associated with our loans, and management’s assumptions in
determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses;

•

declines in the yield on our assets resulting from the current low interest rate environment;

•

risks related to a high concentration of loans secured by real estate located in our market area;

•

the results of examinations by our regulators, including the possibility that our regulators may, among
other things, require us to increase our allowance for loan losses, write down assets, change our regulatory
capital position, limit our ability to borrow funds or maintain or increase deposits, or prohibit us from
paying dividends, which could adversely affect our dividends and earnings;

•

our ability to have sufficient taxable income to be able to fully deduct the contribution to our charitable
foundation;

•

changes in the level of government support of housing finance;

•

our ability to enter new markets successfully and capitalize on growth opportunities;

•

changes in our compensation and benefit plans;

•

loan delinquencies and changes in the underlying cash flows of our borrowers;

•

our ability to control costs and expenses, particularly those associated with operating as a publicly traded
company;

•

the failure or security breaches of computer systems on which we depend;

•

the ability of key third-party service providers to perform their obligations to us;
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•

changes in the financial condition or future prospects of issuers of securities that we own;

•

increased competitive pressures among financial services companies;

•

changes in consumer spending, borrowing and savings habits;

•

adverse changes in the financial industry, securities, credit and national and local real estate markets
(including real estate values);

•

changes in laws or government regulations or policies affecting financial institutions, including the DoddFrank Act, which could result in, among other things, increased deposit insurance premiums and
assessments, capital requirements (particularly the new capital regulations), regulatory fees and
compliance costs and the resources we have available to address such changes;

•

changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the bank regulatory agencies, the
SEC, the Financial Accounting Standards Board or the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board;
and

•

other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory and operational factors affecting our operations,
pricing, products and services described elsewhere in this report.

Our results of operations and financial condition may differ materially from those in the forward-looking
statements. Any of the forward-looking statements that we make in this report and in other public statements we
make may later prove incorrect because of inaccurate assumptions, the factors illustrated above or other factors that
we cannot foresee. Consequently, no forward-looking statement can be guaranteed.
You should not rely upon forward-looking statements that we make in this report and in other public statements
we make as predictions of future events. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking
statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee that the future results, levels of activity, performance or events and
circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements will be achieved or occur. Moreover, we undertake no
obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements for any reason after the date of this report to conform
these statements to actual results or to changes in our expectations.
Item 1A.

Risk Factors

The presentation of Risk Factors is not required for smaller reporting companies such as Central Federal
Bancshares.
Item 1B.

Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
Item 2.

Properties

Central Federal Bancshares and Central Federal operate from our office located at 210 West 10th Street, Rolla,
Missouri 65401. The net book value of our premises at December 31, 2015 was $374,000.
Item 3.

Legal Proceedings

Periodically, there may be various claims and lawsuits against Central Federal or brought by us, such as claims
to enforce liens, condemnation proceedings on properties in which Central Federal holds security interests, claims
involving the making and servicing of real property loans and other issues incident to its business. We are not a
party to any pending legal proceedings that we believe would have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.
Item 4.

Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5.

Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

(a) Holder and Dividend Information . The common stock of Central Federal Bancshares is quoted on the
OTC Pink Marketplace under the symbol “CFDB.” The approximate number of holders of record of Central Federal
Bancshares common stock as of March 11, 2016, was 113. Certain shares of Central Federal Bancshares are held in
“nominee” or “street” name and accordingly, the number of beneficial owners of such shares is not known or
included in the foregoing number. The common stock of Central Federal Bancshares, Inc. began trading on the OTC
Pink Marketplace on January 13, 2016. Accordingly, there is no market information for the years ended
December 31, 2015 or 2014.
Central Federal Bancshares has not declared dividends on its common stock. Dividend payments by Central
Federal Bancshares are dependent in part on dividends it receives from Central Federal because Central Federal
Bancshares has no source of income other than dividends from Central Federal, earnings from the investment of
proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock retained by Central Federal Bancshares and interest payments
with respect to a loan to the Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla Employee Stock Ownership
Plan. Our board of directors has the authority to adopt a policy of paying cash dividends, subject to statutory and
regulatory requirements. We cannot guarantee that we will pay dividends or that, if paid, we will not reduce or
eliminate the dividend in the future.
(b) Sales of Unregistered Securities . Not applicable.
(c) Use of Proceeds . On September 11, 2015, Central Federal Bancshares filed a Registration Statement on
Form S-1 with the SEC in connection with the conversion of Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla
from the mutual to the stock form of organization and the related offering of common stock by Central Federal
Bancshares. The Registration Statement (File No. 333-206874) was declared effective by the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 12, 2015. Central Federal Bancshares registered 1,788,020 shares of common
stock, par value $0.01 per share, pursuant to the Registration Statement for an aggregate price of $17.9 million. The
stock offering commenced on November 20, 2015, and the issuance of 1,788,020 shares was completed on
January 12, 2016 and the shares began trading on January 13, 2016.
Central Federal Bancshares contributed $7.9 million of the net proceeds of the offering to Central Federal. In
addition, $1.4 million of the net proceeds were used to fund the loan to the employee stock ownership plan;
$787,700 (consisting of 68,770 shares of common stock and $100,000 in cash from the proceeds of the offering)
was contributed to Central Federal Community Foundation, a charitable foundation established by Central Federal
in connection with the conversion; and $6.5 million of the net proceeds were retained by Central Federal
Bancshares.
(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans . None.
(e) Stock Repurchases . None.
(f) Stock Performance Graph . Not required for smaller reporting companies.
Item 6.

Selected Financial Data

The summary financial information presented below is derived in part from the audited financial statements of
our subsidiary, Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla. The following is only a summary, and you
should read it in conjunction with the financial statements and notes beginning on page F-1. The information at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 and for the years then ended is derived in part from the audited financial statements of
Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla that appear elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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December 31,
2015
2014
(In thousands)

Selected Financial Condition Data
Total assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit in other financial institutions
Securities available-for-sale at fair value
Loans, net
Premises and equipment, net
Foreclosed assets
Deposits
Other liabilities
Total equity

$80,893
25,010
2,480
436
49,910
676
608
66,615
628
13,650

$63,977
7,902
2,480
31
52,184
739
243
50,282
113
13,582

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2015
2014

Selected Operating Data:
Total interest income
Total interest expense

$2,370
461

$2,466
494

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Total noninterest income
Total noninterest expense
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income

1,909
—
1,909
66
1,862
113
44
$ 69

1,972
60
1,912
72
1,805
179
60
$ 119

At or For the Year Ended
December 31,
2015
2014


Performance Ratios:
Return on average assets
Return on average equity
Net interest rate spread (1)
Net interest margin (2)
Noninterest expense to average assets
Efficiency ratio (3)
Average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing liabilities
Average equity to average assets

0.11%
0.51
2.89
3.13
2.9
94.3
132.6
21.1

0.18%
0.88
2.90
3.15
2.8
88.3
131.4
21.0

Asset Quality Ratios:
Non-performing assets to total assets
Non-performing loans to total loans
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans
Allowance for loan losses to total loans

1.7
1.6
33.5
0.5

1.9%
1.8
29.2
0.5

Regulatory Capital Ratios:
Tier 1 capital (to adjusted total assets)
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Total risk-based capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Common equity Tier 1 (to risk-weighted assets) (4)

20.5
36.1
36.8
36.1

21.2
33.9
34.7
N/A

1

1

Other Data:
Number of full service offices
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(1) Represents the difference between the weighted-average yield on interest-earning assets and weighted-average
rate of interest-bearing liabilities for the year.
(2) The net interest margin represents net interest income as a percent of average interest-earning assets for the
year.
(3) The efficiency ratio represents noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and noninterest
income.
(4) Common equity Tier 1 (to risk-weighted assets) was not in effect for periods prior to the year ended
December 31, 2015.
The Basel III capital rules, which became effective January 1, 2015, revised the prompt corrective action
requirements by: (i) introducing a Common Equity Tier 1 risk-based ratio requirement at each level (other than
critically undercapitalized), with the required Common Equity Tier 1 risk-based ratio being 6.5% for “wellcapitalized” status; (ii) increasing the minimum Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio requirement for each category (other
than critically undercapitalized), with the minimum Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio for “well-capitalized” status being
8% (compared to the prior ratio of 6%) and (iii) eliminating the former provision that provided that a bank with a
composite supervisory rating of 1 may have a 3% Leverage Ratio and still be adequately capitalized. The Basel III
Capital Rules did not change the total risk based capital requirement for any prompt corrective action category.
The Common Equity Tier 1 risk-based ratio requirement was not in effect prior to January 1, 2015, therefore,
the ratios for the periods prior to January 1, 2015 are not applicable.
Item 7.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Operating Strategy
Central Federal is a community-oriented financial institution, dedicated to serving the financial needs of
customers within its market area. We have identified the following strategic initiatives we intend to pursue in our
efforts to achieve our goal to operate and grow a profitable community-oriented financial institution:
Building on our strengths as a community-oriented financial institution. We have operated continuously as
a community-oriented financial institution since we were founded in 1952. We are committed to meeting the
financial needs of our local community and are dedicated to providing quality personal service to our customers. In
that regard, we are focused on building our customer base in the communities we serve through the enhancement of
our products and additional marketing of these products and services. Further, we have provided our customers the
opportunity to become shareholders through our stock offering.
Increasing loan production while maintaining our asset quality. Our loan portfolio has slightly declined
over the past few years in our very competitive market area. Through additional marketing and perhaps the addition
of more lending personnel, we hope to grow our loan portfolio. In growing the loan portfolio, we will seek to
maintain strong asset quality by following prudent underwriting guidelines and utilizing our knowledge of our local
market area.
Strengthening our capital to protect against rising interest rates. We currently have a strong capital base
which is sufficient for interest rate risk purposes in the current low interest rate environment given our interest rate
risk profile. We know if interest rates rise, having a strong capital base will provide us with additional strength to
withstand the impact of rising interest rates. Further, the cash generated from the conversion could be used to fund
loans or purchase investment securities at higher interest rate levels should interest rates rise, providing additional
net interest income.
Critical Accounting Policies
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
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date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term include the
determination of the allowance for loan losses, valuation of foreclosed assets, and valuation of deferred tax assets.
Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is an estimate made by management as necessary
to cover probable losses in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date. The allowance is established through a
provision for loan losses which is charged to expense. Additions to the allowance are expected to maintain the
adequacy of the total allowance after loan losses and loan growth. Loan losses are charged off against the allowance
when Central Federal determines the loan balance to be uncollectible. Cash received on previously charged off
amounts is recorded as a recovery to the allowance. Although management believes the allowance to be adequate,
ultimate losses may vary from its estimates. At least quarterly, the board of directors reviews the adequacy of the
allowance, including consideration of the relevant risks in the portfolio, current economic conditions, and other
factors. If the board of directors and management determine that changes are warranted based on those reviews, the
allowance is adjusted. In addition, Central Federal’s primary regulator reviews the adequacy of the allowance. The
regulatory agencies may require additions to the allowance based on their judgment about information available at
the time of their examinations.
Foreclosed Assets. Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially
recorded at fair value less estimated selling costs at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis.
Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets held for sale are
carried at the lower of the new cost basis or fair value less cost to sell. This evaluation is inherently subjective and
requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revisions as more information becomes available. Due to
potential changes in conditions, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in fair values will occur in the near
term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in Central Federal’s financial statements.
Deferred Tax Assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. These calculations are based on many complex factors including estimates
of the timing of reversals of temporary differences, the interpretation of federal and state income tax laws, and a
determination of the differences between the tax and the financial reporting basis of assets and liabilities. Actual
results could differ significantly from the estimates and interpretations used in determining the current and deferred
income tax liabilities.
The Company completed its offering of common stock on January 12, 2016. In connection with the offering,
the Company contributed to the Central Federal Community Foundation $100,000 in cash and common stock of
$687,700 (68,770 shares at the $10.00 offering price) for a total contribution of $787,700. For Federal income tax
purposes, the deduction for charitable contributions is limited to a maximum of 10% of taxable income before
charitable contributions, net operating losses and dividends received deductions. We are permitted under the Internal
Revenue Code to carry the excess contribution over the five-year period following the contribution to the charitable
foundation, subject to the 10% annual limitation.
We may not have sufficient taxable income to be able to fully deduct the contribution in the year in which it is
made or during the five-year carryover period permitted under the Internal Revenue Code. To the extent we estimate
we will not be able to fully utilize the carryover, we will be required to establish a valuation allowance related to the
portion of the deferred tax asset that is not deemed to be realizable.
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Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
Overview. We had net income of $69,000 for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to net income
of $119,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014. The $50,000, or 42.0%, decrease in net income between the
years was primarily a result of net interest income decreasing $63,000 and noninterest expense increasing $57,000,
partially offset by a $60,000 decrease in the provision for loan loss in 2014 and no provision being added in 2015.
Net Interest Income.
losses.

The following table presents a summary of net interest income before provision for loan

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)

Components of net interest income
Loans, Including Fees
Securities and Other
Total interest income
Deposits
Total interest expense
Net interest income

2015

2014

Increase
(Decrease)

$2,302
68

$2,411
55

$ (109 )
13

(4.52 )%
23.64

$2,370

$2,466

$ (96 )

(3.89 )

461

494

(33 )

(6.68 )

461

494

(33 )

(6.68 )

$1,909

$1,972

$ (63 )

% Change 

(3.19 )%

Net interest income decreased by $63,000, or 3.2%, to $1,909,000 for the year ended December 31, 2015 from
$1,972,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014. Although interest income on loans decreased by $109,000 from
the year ended December 31, 2014 to the year ended December 31, 2015, interest expense decreased by $33,000
during that same period, offsetting a portion of the decreased interest income. In addition, securities and other
interest income increased by $13,000. Securities and other interest income consists of interest earning due from
bank accounts, certificates of deposits, municipal obligations, federal funds sold and dividends on FHLB Stock. The
increase in interest on securities and other interest bearing assets of $1,417,000 was primarily a result of an increase
in cash in the Federal Reserve Bank account at the end of the year as a result of receipt of subscriptions in advance
of the conversion of Central Federal to stock form.
The decrease in interest income on loans is primarily the result of a $2.9 million decrease in the average
balance of loans from $52.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 to $50.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015. Although originations were higher in 2015 than 2014, the current year included a large amount
of principal repayments, which decreased the average balance during the year.
The decrease in interest expense on deposits was due to a $1.6 million decrease in the average balance of
deposits from $47.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 to $46.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015.
Average Balances and Yields. The following table presents information regarding average balances of assets
and liabilities, the total dollar amounts of interest income and dividends from average interest-earning assets, the
total dollar amounts of interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities, and the resulting annualized average
yields and costs. The yields and costs for the years indicated are derived by dividing income or expense by the
average balances of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the years presented. Average balances have been calculated
using daily balances, and non-accrual loans are included in average balances only. Loan fees are included in interest
income on loans and are insignificant. Any adjustments necessary to present yields on a tax-equivalent basis are
insignificant.
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Average
Balance

Interest-earning assets:
Loans receivable, net of fees
Securities and other interest bearing assets (1)

Year Ended December 31,
2015
2014
 
Interest
Interest
and
Yield/
Average
and
Yield/
 Dividends   Cost   Balance   Dividends   Cost
(Dollars in thousands)

Total interest-earning assets
Non-interest-earning assets
Allowance for loan losses
Total assets

$49,951 $ 2,302
11,030
68
60,981
2,370
3,005
(270 )
$63,716

4.61% $52,915
0.62%
9,613
3.89% 62,528
2,396
(393 )
$64,531

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Certificate of deposits
Savings
Money market
Interest-bearing DDA
Total interest-bearing deposits
Non-interest-bearing deposits
Other non-interest-bearing liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

$23,658
3,670
9,383
9,291
46,002
4,006
92
50,100
13,616
$63,716

1.45% $26,850
0.30%
3,555
0.53%
9,930
0.60%
7,257
1.00% 47,592
3,285
106
50,983
13,548
$64,531

Net interest income

344
11
50
56
461

$ 1,909

Net interest rate spread (2)
Net interest-earning assets (3)

4.56%
0.57%
3.94%

391
11
52
40
494

1.46%
0.31%
0.52%
0.55%
1.04%

$ 1,972
2.89%

$14,979

Net interest margin (4)
Ratio of average interest-earning assets to average
interest-bearing liabilities

$ 2,411
55
2,466

2.90%
$14,936

3.13%
132.6%

3.15%
131.4%

(1) Includes municipal obligations with an average balance and interest income of $107,000 and $2,000,
respectively.
(2) Interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets and the cost
of average interest-bearing liabilities.
(3) Net interest-earning assets represents total interest-earning assets less total interest-bearing liabilities.
(4) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by total interest-earning assets.
Rate/Volume Analysis. The following table sets forth the effects of changing rates and volumes on our net
interest income. The rate column shows the effects attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by
prior volume). The volume column shows the effects attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume
multiplied by prior rate). The total column represents the sum of the prior columns. Changes attributable to changes
in both rate and volume have been allocated proportionally based on the absolute dollar amounts of changes in each.
The following table presents the rate volume analysis for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.
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Year Ended December 31, 2015 vs. 2014
Increase (Decrease) due to
Volume

Rate

Total
Increase
(Decrease) 

(In thousands)

Interest-earning assets:
Loans
Other Interest Earning Assets
Total interest-earning assets
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Certificate of deposits
Savings
Money Market
Interest-bearing DDA
Total interest-bearing liabilities
Change in net interest income

$ (135 )
8

$ 26
5

$ (109 )
13

(127 )

31

(96 )

(44 )
—
(3 )
12

(3 )
—
1
4

(47 )
—
(2 )
16

(35 )

2

(33 )

$ (92 )

$ 29

$ (63 )

Provision for Loan Losses. We maintain an allowance for loan losses at a level necessary to absorb
management’s best estimate of probable loan losses in the portfolio. Management reviews the level of the allowance
for loan losses on a quarterly basis based on a variety of factors. Management considers, among other factors,
historical loss experience, type and amount of loans, borrower concentrations and current conditions of the
economy. In addition, the allowance considers the level of loans which management monitors as a result of
inconsistent repayment patterns. Such loans carry a higher degree of credit risk than our historical single-family
lending.
Management also reviews individual loans for which full collectability may not be reasonably assured and
considers, among other matters, the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral. This evaluation is ongoing and
results in variations in our provision for loan losses.
We had no provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2015, compared to a provision of
$60,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014. Net loan charge-offs amounted to $18,000 during the year ended
December 31, 2015, compared to $132,000 during the year ended December 31, 2014.
The reduction in the level of provision for loan losses reflects lower levels of specific allowances related to
impaired loans individually evaluated for impairment, a decrease in non-performing loans, and the stabilization of
the quantitative and qualitative factors during the year ended December 31, 2015.
Although management utilizes its best judgment in providing for losses, there can be no assurance that they
will not have to change its allowance for loan losses in subsequent periods. The allowance for loan losses reflects
the estimate we believe to be appropriate to cover incurred probable losses in the loan portfolio at December 31,
2015. While we believe the estimates and assumptions used in our determination of the adequacy of the allowance
are reasonable, such estimates and assumptions could be proven incorrect in the future, and the actual amount of
future provisions may exceed the amount of past provisions, and the increase in future provisions that may be
required may adversely impact our financial condition and results of operations. In addition, our primary regulator
may comment during an examination on the provision for loan losses or the recognition of further loan charge-offs,
based on judgments regarding loan portfolio information available at the time of the examination. Management will
continue to monitor the allowance for loan losses and make additional provisions to the allowance as appropriate.
An analysis of the changes in the allowance for loan losses, non-performing loans and classified loans is
presented under Allowance for Loan Losses, Analysis of Non-Performing Assets and Troubled Debt Restructurings,
and Classified Assets below.
Noninterest Income. Total noninterest income remained relatively stable decreasing a modest $6,000
comparing the year ended December 31, 2014 to the year ended December 31, 2015. The table below summarizes
information related to non-interest income.
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Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)

2015

2014

Increase
(Decrease)

Customer service fees
Other income

$47
19

$49
23

$(2 )
(4 )

(4.08 )%
(17.39 )

$66

$72

$(6 )

(8.33 )%

Total Noninterest Income

% Change 

Noninterest Expenses. Total noninterest expenses increased by $57,000, or 3.2%, for the year ended
December 31, 2015 compared to the year ended December 31, 2014. The decrease primarily was attributable to a
$41,000, or 75.9%, increase in legal and professional services expense related in large part to the re-audit of our
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 performed in conjunction with the conversion
from a federally chartered mutual savings association into a federally chartered stock savings association, and
formation of a stock holding company.
Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands)

Compensation and Employee Benefits
Data Processing and Other Outside Services
FDIC Insurance and Regulatory Assessment
Occupancy and Equipment
Legal and Professional Services
Supplies, Telephone, and Postage
Operations of Foreclosed Assets
Other
Total Noninterest Expense

2015

2014

Increase
(Decrease)

$1,064
254
80
212
95
43
24
90

$1,054
256
83
215
54
46
11
86

$10
(2 )
(3 )
(3 )
41
(3 )
13
4

$1,862

$1,805

$57

% Change 

0.95%
(0.78 )
(3.61 )
(1.40 )
75.93
(6.52 )
118.18
4.65
3.16%

Income Tax Expense. We had an income tax expense of $44,000 and $60,000 during the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014. The decrease in income tax expense reflects a decrease in pre-tax income for 2015
compared to 2014. Our effective tax rate increased from 33.5% in 2014 to 38.9% in 2015.
Balance Sheet Analysis as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
Total Assets. At December 31, 2015, total assets were $80.9 million, an increase of $16.9 million, or 26.4%,
from total assets of $64.0 million at December 31, 2014. The increase in assets for the year ended December 31,
2015 was due mainly to a $17.1 million, or 216.5%, increase in cash and cash equivalents from the receipt of
subscriptions in advance of the conversion of Central Federal to stock form, which were maintained in a deposit
account at Central Federal, and a $1.4 million increase in other assets, offset by a $2.3 million, or 4.4%, decrease in
loans. The increase in other assets relates to the deferral of stock conversion costs of $1.4 million at December 31,
2015.
Loans. The largest portion of our loan portfolio consists of residential real estate loans which totaled $31.7
million, or 63.2%, and $34.2 million, or 65.1%, of the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014, respectively. Residential real estate loans decreased by $2.5 million, or 7.2%, during the year ended
December 31, 2015, primarily due to a weak loan demand and competitive interest rates in our market area.
Commercial and multi-family real estate loans totaled $16.1 million and represented 32.1% of total loans at
December 31, 2015. This is an increase of $123,000, or 0.8%, from $16.0 million, or 30.5% of total loans, at
December 31, 2014. The market area served by Central Federal is very competitive and interest rate sensitive.
Commercial real estate loans generally consist of loans secured by multi-family residential rentals, retail stores, and
other commercial real estate.
Commercial business loans totaled $2.0 million and $1.9 million, comprising 3.9% and 3.6% of the total loan
portfolio at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. Commercial business loans increased
$71,000, or 3.8%, during the year ended December 31, 2015.
Consumer and other loans decreased by $14,000, or 3.2%, from $432,000 at December 31, 2014 to $418,000 at
December 31, 2015.
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Loan Portfolio Composition.
indicated.

The following table sets forth the composition of our loan portfolio at the dates
December 31, 2015
Amount

December 31, 2014 
Percent 

Percent

Amount

(Dollars in thousands)

Commercial Business
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Consumer and Other

$ 1,951
16,116
31,705
418

Total Loans

50,190

Allowance for loan losses
Net deferred loan fees

3.9% $ 1,880
32.1% 15,993
63.2% 34,179
0.8%
432
100.0%

$49,910

100.0%

52,484

(261 )
(19 )

Net Loans

3.6%
30.5%
65.1%
0.8%

(279 )
(21 )
$52,184

Loan Maturity. The following table summarizes the scheduled repayments of our loan portfolio at
December 31, 2015. Demand loans, loans having no stated repayment schedule or maturity and overdraft loans are
reported as being due in one year or less. Actual maturities may differ due to prepayments.
Commercial
and MultiCommercial
Family Real
Residential
Consumer
Estate
  Business  
  Real Estate   and Other   Total Loans 
(In thousands)

As of December 31, 2015
Due in One Year or Less
Due after One through Five Years
Due after Five Years

$

756
370
825

$ 1,369
1,863
12,884

$

758
886
30,061

$ 67
316
35

$ 2,950
3,435
43,805

$ 1,951

$ 16,116

$ 31,705

$ 418

$ 50,190

Fixed vs Adjustable Rate Loans. The following table sets forth the dollar amount of all loans at
December 31, 2015 that are due after December 31, 2016, and that have either fixed interest rates, or floating or
adjustable interest rates. The amounts shown below exclude deferred loan origination fees and deferred loan costs.

Fixed Rates

Floating or
Adjustable
Rates

Total 

(In thousands)

Secured by Real Estate:
Commercial and Multi-Family
Residential
Other Loans:
Commercial Business
Consumer and Other
Total Loans

$ 12,083
14,028

$ 2,664
16,919

$14,747
30,947

1,195
351

—
—

1,195
351

$ 27,657

$ 19,583

$47,240

Scheduled contractual principal repayments of loans do not reflect the actual life of such assets. The average
life of loans is substantially less than their contractual terms because of prepayments. In addition, due-on-sale
clauses on loans generally give us the right to declare a loan immediately due and payable in the event, among other
things, that the borrower sells the real property subject to the mortgage and the loan is
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not repaid. The average life of mortgage loans tends to increase when current mortgage loan market rates are
substantially higher than rates on existing mortgage loans and, conversely, decrease when current mortgage loan
market rates are substantially lower than rates on existing mortgage loans.
Loan Activity. The following table shows loan activity, consisting of loans originated, loan payoffs and loan
charge-offs, for the year indicated.
Year Ended December 31,
2015

2014


(In thousands)

Total loans at beginning of year
Loans Originated:
Commercial Business
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Consumer and Other
Total loans originated
Deduct:
Loans principal repayment (amortization and payoffs)
Charge-offs
Net loan activity
Total loans at end of year

$ 52,484

$ 53,935

313
1,887
5,821
299

800
1,736
5,303
291

8,320

8,130

(10,595 )
(19 )

(9,448 )
(133 )

(2,294 )

(1,451 )

$ 50,190

$ 52,484

Loan originations come from a variety of sources. Our primary sources of loan originations are existing
customers, walk-in traffic, advertising and referrals from customers.
We did not sell any loans during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. From time to time we do buy
participation loans. During the year ended December 31, 2014, we purchased a $700,000 participation interest in a
commercial real estate loan from another financial institution. We did not purchase any loans during the year ended
December 31, 2015.
Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses (allowance) is an estimate of probable loan losses
in Central Federal’s loan portfolio. The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses which is
charged to expense. Additions to the allowance are expected to maintain the adequacy of the total allowance after
loan losses and loan growth. Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when Central Federal determines the
loan balance to be uncollectible. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.
General Allowances. The general component of the loan loss allowance covers non-impaired loans and is
based on historical losses adjusted for current qualitative factors. The historical loss component is determined by
portfolio segment and is based on the actual loss history experienced by Central Federal over the most recent three
years. This is adjusted for qualitative factors based on the risks present for each portfolio segment. These qualitative
factors include: (i) changes in the value of underlying collateral; (ii) changes in lending policies and underwriting
practices; (iii) national and local economic trends and conditions; (iv) volume and terms of loans; (v) experience,
ability and depth of lending management; (vi) changes in past due loans, nonaccrual loans, and credit quality; (vii)
changes in loan file review; (viii) changes in credit concentrations and (ix) the impact of competition.
Specific Allowances. The specific component includes allowances for loans that are considered impaired
when, based on current information and events, it is probable that Central Federal will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments and principal or interest under the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Central Federal
measures individual impairment based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the original
contractual interest rate, except that as a practical expedient, it may measure impairment based on an observable
market price, or the fair value of the collateral, if collateral dependent. A loan is collateral dependent if the
repayment is expected to be provided solely by the underlying collateral.
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Unallocated Allowances. Allowances other than general and specific allocations are included in the
unallocated portion of the loan loss allowance. The unallocated allowance reflects the imprecision inherent in the
underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating the general allowance.
At December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the allowance was $261,000 and $279,000, respectively. At
December 31, 2015, the largest allowance in the portfolio was the allowance for residential real estate loans which
made up approximately 70.1% of the total allowance at $183,000, and at December 31, 2014, the largest allowance
in the portfolio was the allowance for residential real estate loans which made up about 69.2% of the total allowance
at $193,000.
The following table sets forth the breakdown of the allowance for loan losses by loan category at the dates
indicated. The allocation of the allowance to each category is not necessarily indicative of future losses and does not
restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in each category.
December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014
 

Percent of
Percent of
Percent of
Percent of
Allowance
Loans in
Allowance
Loans in
to Total
Category to
to Total
Category to
  Amount   Allowance   Total Loans   Amount   Allowance   Total Loans 
 
(Dollars in thousands)
 
(Dollars in thousands)

 

Commercial Business
Commercial and Multi-Family
Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Consumer and Other
Total allocated allowance
Unallocated allowance
Total allowance for loan loss

$

5

1.92%

3.89%

30
183
4

11.49%
70.11%
1.53%

222
39
$ 261

$

4

1.43%

3.58%

32.11%
63.17%
0.83%

46
193
4

16.49%
69.18%
1.43%

30.47%
65.12%
0.83%

85.05%
14.95%

100.00%
—

247
32

88.53%
11.47%

100.00%
—

100.00%

100.00%

$ 279

100.00%

100.00%

At December 31, 2015, our allowance for loan losses of $261,000 was 0.5% of total loans and 33.5% of nonperforming loans. At December 31, 2014, our allowance for loan losses of $279,000 was 0.5% of total loans and
29.2% of non-performing loans.
Although we believe that we use the best available information to establish the allowance for loan losses, future
adjustments to the allowance for loan losses may be necessary and our results of operations could be adversely
affected if circumstances differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the determinations. At least
quarterly, the board of directors reviews the adequacy of the allowance, including consideration of the relevant risks
in the portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors. If the board of directors and management determine
that changes are warranted based on those reviews, the allowance is adjusted.
Furthermore, while we believe we have established our allowance for loan losses in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and have taken into account the views of regulators and the current economic
environment, there can be no assurance that in the future Central Federal’s regulators or the economic environment
will not require further increases in the allowance. Any material increases in the allowance for loan losses may
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operation.
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Analysis of Loan Loss Experience.
for the years indicated.

The following table sets forth an analysis of the allowance for loan losses
Year Ended
December 31
2015

2014


(Dollars in thousands)

Allowance at beginning of year
Charge-offs:
Residential real estate
Consumer and other

$

Total charge-offs
Recoveries

279

$

(17 )
(2 )

(129 )
(4 )

(19 )

(133 )

1

Net charge-offs
Provision for loan losses
Allowance at end of year

$

351

1

(18 )

(132 )

—

60

261

$

279

Ratios:
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans at end of year
Allowance for loan losses to total loans at end of year

0.04%

0.25%

33.50%

29.18%

0.52%

0.53%

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the allowance decreased by $18,000 to $261,000, as compared to a
decrease of $72,000 to $279,000 during the same period in 2014. The decrease for the year ended December 31,
2015 was due to $19,000 in charge-offs offset with $1,000 in recoveries. Residential real estate charge-offs were
lower in 2015 as charge-offs were minimal with the largest charge-off being $17,000. In 2014, the largest charge-off
was for $104,000. The allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans ratio increased due to a decrease in nonperforming loans to $779,000 as of December 31, 2015 from $956,000 as of December 31, 2014. Non-performing
loans decreased due to one residential real estate property foreclosed. The allowance for loan loss as a percentage of
total loans as of December 31, 2015 decreased by 0.01% to 0.52% compared to 0.53% as of December 31, 2014.
Delinquencies.
dates indicated.

The following table provides the information about delinquencies in our loan portfolio at the
Loans Delinquent For
30 – 89 Days
Total
  90 Days or More  

Number
Amount
Number
Amount
Number
 
 
 
 
 
  Amount 
(Dollars in thousands)
 

At December 31, 2015
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Consumer and Other
Total

—
4
5
9

$ —
186
12
$ 198

—
3
—
3

$ —
100
—
$ 100

—
7
5
12

$ —
286
12
$ 298

At December 31, 2014
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Consumer and Other
Total

1
2
2
5

$ 51
145
12
$ 208

—
5
2
7

$ —
773
3
$ 776

1
7
4
12

$ 51
918
15
$ 984

As of December 31, 2015 there were 9 loans delinquent between 30 – 89 days that totaled $198,000. This is an
increase in the 5 loans delinquent for 30 – 89 days, but a decrease in the amount of the loans from $208,000 as of
December 31, 2014. There was a decrease in loans delinquent for 90 days or more from 7 loans as of December 31,
2014 to 3 loans as of December 31, 2015.
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Managing risk is an essential part of successfully managing a financial institution. Our most prominent risk
exposures are credit risk, interest rate risk and market risk. Credit risk is the risk of not collecting the interest and/or
the principal balance of a loan when it is due. Interest rate risk is the potential reduction of interest income and/or
the potential increase of interest expense as a result of changes in interest rates. Market risk reflects changes in the
value of collateral underlying loans receivable and the valuation of real estate held by Central Federal. Other risks
that we face are operational risk, liquidity risks and reputation risk. Operational risks include risks related to fraud,
regulatory compliance, processing errors, technology, use of third-party vendors and disaster recovery. Liquidity
risk is the possible inability to fund obligations to depositors, lenders or potential borrowers. Reputation risk is the
risk that negative publicity or press, whether true or not, could cause a decline in our customer base or income.
Analysis of Non-Performing Assets and Troubled Debt Restructurings. We consider foreclosed assets,
which are assets repossessed by Central Federal, accruing loans 90 days or more past due and non-accrual loans to
be non-performing assets. Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are considered foreclosed assets
and are held for sale. These assets are initially recorded at fair value less estimated selling cost at the date of
foreclosure, which establishes a new cost basis for those assets. Any write-downs based on the asset’s fair value at
the date of foreclosure, or subsequent to the date of foreclosure, are charged to the allowance for loan losses. The
assets held for sale are carried at the lower of the new cost basis or fair value less cost to sell.
Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when the collectability is considered to be uncertain or
payments have become more than 90 days or more delinquent, unless the credit is well-secured and in process of
collection. In some cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal
or interest is considered doubtful. Credit card loans and other personal loans are typically charged off no later than
180 days past due. As of December 31, 2015, we had 2 loans on non-accrual status totaling $679,000, compared to 9
loans on non-accrual status amounting to $644,000 as of December 31, 2014. Nonaccrual loans for those periods
represented 1.4% and 1.2% of total loans, respectively.
Under certain circumstances, Central Federal will provide borrowers relief through loan restructuring. A
restructuring of debt constitutes a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”) if Central Federal, for economic or legal
reasons related to the borrower’s financial situation, grants a concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise
have considered. Loans that are reported as TDRs are considered impaired and measured for impairment.
Depending on the individual facts and circumstances of the borrower, restructuring loans can involve loans
remaining in full nonaccrual, moving to nonaccrual or continuing on accrual status.
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The following table provides information with respect to our non-performing assets and TDRs at the dates
indicated.
December 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

(Dollars in thousands)

Non-accrual loans:
Residential real estate
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate
Consumer and Other

$

289
390
—

$

590
51
3

Total
Accruing loans 90 days or more past due:
Residential real estate

679

644

100

312

Total non-performing loans
Real estate owned

779
608

956
243

Total non-performing assets
Troubled debt restructurings (TDR):
Commercial real estate

$ 1,387

$ 1,199

390

391

Total non-performing assets and troubled debt restructurings

$ 1,777

$ 1,590

Ratios:
Total non-performing loans to total loans

1.6%

1.8%

Total non-performing assets to total assets

1.7%

1.9%

Total non-performing loans and TDRs to total loans

2.3%

2.6%

Total non-performing assets and TDRs to total assets

2.2%

2.5%

Total non-performing loans decreased by $177,000 from $956,000 at December 31, 2014 to $779,000 at
December 31, 2015. The majority of this change was due to a $513,000 decrease in residential real estate loans
mainly attributed to one loan, amounting to $265,000, transferred to real estate owned and a $212,000 decrease in
loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing. Real estate owned has increased from one property of $243,000 at
December 31, 2014 to three properties totaling $608,000 at December 31, 2015.
There was one loan that was considered a TDR as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 with a
balance of $390,000 and $391,000, respectively.
Foreclosed assets at December 31, 2015 consisted of 3 properties totaling $608,000, which is an increase from
the single foreclosed asset at December 31, 2014 which totaled $243,000. The increase is due to a property in Cuba,
Missouri being foreclosed-on during the second quarter of 2015 and a second property in Rolla, Missouri being
foreclosed-on during the third quarter of 2015 and repossessed by Central Federal.
At June 30, 2015, we had no loans which were not classified as nonaccrual, 90 days past due or TDRs but
where known information about possible credit problems of the borrowers caused management to have concerns as
to the ability of the borrowers to comply with present loan repayment terms and which may result in the future
inclusion of such items in non-performing loans.
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The following table provides information with respect to partial charge-offs on non-performing loans and
accruing TDRs at the dates indicated.
December 31,
2015

2014

(Dollars in thousands)

Total non-performing loans

$ 779

Less partially charged off non-performing loans

$ 956

—

(257 )

Adjusted non-performing loans

$ 779

$ 699

Total non-performing loans and accruing troubled debt restructurings

$1,169

$1,347

Adjusted non-performing loans and accruing troubled debt restructurings

$1,169

$1,090

Adjusted non-performing loans to total assets

1.0%

1.1%

Adjusted non-performing loans and accruing troubled debt restructurings to total assets

1.4%

1.7%

Allowance for loan losses to adjusted non-performing loans and accruing troubled debt
restructurings at end of year

22.3%

25.6%

Classified Assets. Central Federal assigns a risk rating to loans and foreclosed assets to identify credit risks
and to assess the overall collectability of the assets. These risk ratings are also subject to examination by Central
Federal’s regulators. We categorize the assets based on the financial condition of the borrowers, trends in the
industries in which the borrower operates and the fair values of collateral securing the loans and foreclosed assets.
Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves management’s close attention. If
left uncorrected, this potential weakness may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or of
Central Federal’s credit position at some future date. Special mention loans are not adversely classified and do not
expose Central Federal to sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification. Loans classified as substandard are not
adequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged, if
any. Loans classified as substandard have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the repayment of
the debt. Well-defined weaknesses include a borrower’s lack of marketability, inadequate cash flow or collateral
support, failure to complete construction on time, or the failure to fulfill economic expectations. They are
characterized by the distinct possibility that Central Federal will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not
corrected.
December 31,
2015

2014

(In thousands)

Special mention
Substandard

$ 225
821

$ 877
759

Total criticized and classfied loans
Foreclosed assets

$1,046
608

$1,636
243

Total criticized and classfied assets

$1,654

$1,879

Securities. Our board of directors has the overall responsibility for the investment portfolio, including
approval of the investment policy. Our primary investment objectives are: (i) to provide and maintain liquidity; (ii)
to fully employ the available funds of Central Federal; (iii) to earn an average rate of return on invested funds
competitive with comparable institutions; (iv) to manage interest rate risk; and (v) to limit credit and interest rate
risk. Our chief executive officer is responsible for the implementation of our policy and monitoring our investment
performance. Our board of directors reviews the status of our investment portfolio on a monthly basis.
We have legal authority to invest in various types of liquid assets, including U.S. Treasury obligations,
securities of various government-sponsored agencies and of state and municipal governments, mortgage-backed
securities and certificates of deposit of federally insured institutions. Within certain
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regulatory limits, we also may invest a portion of our assets in other permissible securities. As a member of the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines, we also are required to maintain an investment in the stock of that
institution.
The following table sets forth the amortized costs and fair values of our available-for-sale securities at the dates
indicated. There were no investments in an unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014.
December 31, 2015
December 31, 2014
 

  Amortized Cost   Fair Value   Amortized Cost   Fair Value 
(In thousands)
 

Investments available-for-sale:
Municipal Obligation
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Stock

$ 408
15

$ 414
22

$—
15

$—
31

$ 423

$ 436

$15

$ 31

Our securities available-for-sale consists of a municipal obligation valued at $414,000 and $0 at December 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation common stock with a
fair value of $22,000 and $31,000 at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. The overall change
in securities available-for-sale during 2015 is due to our purchase of the municipal obligation.
We held $2.5 million of certificates of deposits in other financial institutions at December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014. The balance has not changed during this time, however there were two securities which
matured throughout the year and were replaced with new certificates of deposit for the same amount maturing in
2020. We plan to hold these investments until maturity.
December 31, 2015
(Dollars in thousands)
Weighted
Amount Average Rate 

Certificates of Deposit in Other Financial Institutions Maturing In:
2016
2017
2019
2020
Securities available-for-sale
Total

$ 248
248
992
992

1.30%
1.60
1.76
2.24

2,480
436

1.89%

$2,916

In addition to our investment portfolio, at December 31, 2015 we held $77,000 of Federal Home Loan Bank of
Des Moines stock, carried at cost.
Deposits. Deposits have traditionally been our primary source of funds for use in lending and investment
activities. Deposits generally are attracted from within our market area through the offering of a broad selection of
deposit instruments, including non-interest-bearing demand deposit accounts (“DDA”) (such as checking accounts),
interest-bearing demand deposit accounts (such as checking and money market accounts), statement savings
accounts, and certificates of deposit. Deposit account terms vary according to the minimum balance required, the
time period for which the funds must remain on deposit, and the interest rate, among other factors.
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The following table sets forth the balances of our deposit accounts at the dates indicated.
December 31, 2015
Amount

Percent

December 31, 2014 
Percent 

Amount

(Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest-Bearing DDA
Interest-Bearing DDA
Savings
Certificates of Deposit, $250,000 or more
Certificates of Deposit, less than $250,000
Total Deposits

$21,845
18,765
3,485
3,018
19,502

32.8% $ 2,640
28.2% 18,936
5.2%
3,625
4.5%
3,535
29.3% 21,546

5.2%
37.7%
7.2%
7.0%
42.9%

$66,615

100.0% $50,282

100.0%

The following table sets forth deposit activity for the years indicated.
Year Ended December 31,
2015

2014


(In thousands)

Beginning balance
Net increase (decrease) in Deposits

$ 50,282
16,333

$ 51,175
(893 )

Ending Balance

$ 66,615

$ 50,282

Total deposits increased by $16.3 million, or 32.5%, from $50.3 million, or 78.6% of total assets, at
December 31, 2014 to $66.6 million, or 82.4% of total assets, at December 31, 2015, from the receipt of
subscriptions in advance of the conversion of Central Federal to stock form, which were maintained in a deposit
account at Central Federal. Interest-bearing demand deposits make up the majority of the deposit balance accounting
for $18.8 million, or 28.2%, and $18.9 million, or 37.7%, as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
respectively. Non-interest bearing demand deposits increased by $19.2 million due to subscriptions related to
Central Federal’s stock conversion, being placed in the noninterest bearing DDA account. Savings accounts
remained consistent.
Certificates of deposits, specifically those less than $250,000, decreased by $2.0 million as a number of
securities expired in 2015. The follow table provides information regarding all of our certificates of deposit by time
remaining until maturity as of December 31, 2015.
Maturity Period at December 31, 2015

Amount
(In thousands)

Three months or less
Over three months through six months
Over six months through one year
Over one year through three years
Over three years
Total

$ 4,811
2,653
4,754
8,614
1,688
$ 22,520

The following table indicates the amount of certificates of deposits with balances of $100,000 or greater by
time remaining until maturity as of December 31, 2015.
Maturity Period at December 31, 2015

Amount
(In thousands)

Three months or less
Over three months through six months
Over six months through twelve months
Over twelve months
Total

$ 2,792
892
1,206
4,561
$ 9,451
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Equity. Equity increased by $68,000, or 0.5%, to $13.7 million at December 31, 2015 from $13.6 million at
December 31, 2014, primarily as the result of net income of $69,000 for the year ended December 31, 2015.
Liquidity Management
Liquidity is the ability to meet current and future financial obligations of a short-term nature. Our primary
sources of funds available to meet short-term liquidity needs consist of deposits, funds from scheduled loan
payments, loan prepayments, and income on earning assets. While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans
are predictable sources of funds, deposit flows, and mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest
rates, economic conditions, and competition.
Our most liquid assets are cash and cash equivalents, interest-bearing deposits, and securities available for sale.
At December 31, 2015, cash and cash equivalents totaled $25.0 million. Of the $25.0 million of cash and cash
equivalents, $19.2 million represent subscriptions in advance of the conversion of Central Federal to stock form.
Certificates of deposit in other financial institutions and securities available-for-sale totaled $2.5 million and
$436,000, respectively, at December 31, 2015.
Our cash flows are composed of three primary classifications: cash flows from operating activities, investing
activities, and financing activities. Net cash used in operating activities was $715,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2015, and net cash provided by operating activities was $299,000 for the year ended December 31,
2014, respectively. The majority of this change was due to the fact that Central Federal incurred common stock
conversion and issuance costs of $1.4 million, which were deferred and deducted from proceeds of the offering. Net
cash provided by investing activities, which consists primarily of activity in loans, were $1.5 million and $1.2
million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended December 31, 2014, respectively. Net cash
provided by financing activities, consisting of activity in deposit accounts, was $16.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2015, and net cash used in financing activities was $893,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014,
respectively. The increase was due to total deposits increasing as a result of subscriptions in advance of the
conversion of Central Federal to stock form.
Certificates of deposit maturing over the next 12 months totaled $12.2 million, or 54.3%, of certificates of
deposit. Although we generally manage the pricing of our deposits to be competitive, management understands that
if these maturing deposits are not reinvested or do not stay with Central Federal, we will be required to seek other
sources of funding or rely on new certificates of deposit. If these deposits are withdrawn, it is anticipated that they
would be funded with available cash or replaced with deposits from other customers. Federal Home Loan Bank or
Federal Reserve Bank borrowings or proceeds from the sale of securities could also be used to replace unanticipated
outflows of deposits.
Capital Management
We are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the OCC, including risk-based
capital measures. The risk-based capital guidelines include both a definition of capital and a framework for
calculating risk-weighted assets by assigning balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet items to broad risk
categories. At December 31, 2015, we exceeded all of our regulatory capital requirements, and were considered
“well capitalized” under regulatory guidelines, with Tier 1 capital to adjusted total assets ratio of 20.5%, a Tier 1
capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of 36.1%, a total-risk based capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of 36.8% and a
common equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of 36.1%. Refer to Note 14 to the accompanying Notes to
the Financial Statements.
The capital from the offering of Central Federal Bancshares common stock in connection with the conversion
of Central Federal to stock form will significantly increase our liquidity and capital resources in future periods. Over
time, the initial level of liquidity will be reduced as net proceeds from the stock offering are used for general
corporate purposes, including the funding of lending activities. Our financial condition and results of operations will
be enhanced by the capital from the offering, resulting in increased net interest-earning assets and net interest
income. However, the large increase in equity resulting from the capital raised in the offering will, initially, have an
adverse impact on our return on equity, and under OCC regulations, we will not be allowed to repurchase any shares
during the first year following the offering, except to fund the restricted stock awards under the equity benefit plan
after its approval by shareholders, unless extraordinary circumstances exist and we receive regulatory approval.
36

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. In the normal course of business, Central Federal has outstanding
commitments and contingent liabilities, such as commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit, which
are not included in the accompanying financial statements. Central Federal’s exposure to credit loss in the event of
nonperformance by the other party to the financial instruments is represented by the contractual or notional amount
of those instruments. Central Federal has $5.6 million in unfunded commitments under lines of credit and $15,000
in standby letters of credit as of December 31, 2015. The amount of standby letters of credit was the same for the
year ended December 31, 2014. However, the unfunded commitments under lines of credit were $2.6 million as of
December 31, 2014. As the economy improves, management believes that borrowers are seeking additional funding
which caused an increase in the unfunded commitments under lines of credit to increase by $3.0 million.
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
conditions established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Central Federal evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case by
case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by Central Federal upon extension of credit, is
based on management credit evaluation. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory,
property and equipment, and income producing commercial property.
Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by Central Federal to guarantee the performance
of a customer to a third party. Standby letters of credit generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same
as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Central Federal’s policy for obtaining collateral, and the
nature of such collateral, is essentially the same as that involved in making commitments to extend credit. Central
Federal was not required to perform on any financial guarantees and did not incur any losses on its commitments.
Interest Rate Risk Management
As a result of our banking activities, we are exposed to interest rate risk. As a financial institution, the majority
of our assets and liabilities are sensitive to changes in interest rates. Therefore, a principal part of our operations is
to manage interest rate risk and limit our exposure to changes in market interest rates. We manage interest rate
sensitivity of our interest-bearing liabilities and interest-earning assets in an effort to minimize the adverse effects of
changes in the interest rate environment.
A major source of interest rate risk is a difference in the repricing of assets as compared to the repricing of
liabilities. Deposit accounts typically react more quickly to changes in market interest rates than mortgage loans
because of the shorter maturity of deposits. As a result, sharp increases in interest rates may adversely affect our
earnings while decreases in interest rates may beneficially affect our earnings. We seek to reduce the potential
volatility of our earnings by continually improving the matching between our asset and liability maturities and rates.
Central Federal’s goal is to manage asset and liability positions to moderate the effect of interest rate
fluctuations on our earnings, while also controlling exposure to interest rate risk within policy limits approved by
our board of directors. These limits and guidelines reflect Central Federal’s tolerance for interest rate risk over both
short-term and long-term horizons.
Net Portfolio Value. We currently utilize an economic value of equity analysis to review our level of interest
rate risk. We measure our interest rate risk through the use of a financial model provided by an outside consulting
firm. This model measures interest rate risk by capturing changes in the economic value of assets and liabilities,
based on a range of assumed changes in market interest rates. Economic value represents the market value of our
assets and liabilities. These analyses assess the risk of loss in market risk-sensitive instruments in the event of a
sudden and sustained 100 to 400 basis point increase or a 100 basis point decrease in market interest rates with no
effect given to any steps that we might take to counter the effect of that interest rate movement.
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The following table presents the change in the economic value of our equity at December 31, 2015 that would
occur in the event of an immediate change in interest rates based on assumptions we consider to be reasonable, with
no effect given to any steps that we might take to counteract that change.
EVE as a Percentage of
Present Value of Assets (3)
Change in Interest
Rates
(basis points) (1)

Estimated
Amount (2)

Estimated Increase
(Decrease) in EVE
Amount

Percent

EVE
Ratio (4)

Increase
(Decrease)
(basis points)

(Dollars in thousands)

+400
+300
+200
+100
—

$15,238
15,649
16,057
16,477
16,906

-100

17,203

$(1,668 )
(1,257 )
(849 )
(429 )
—

(9.87 )%
(7.44 )
(5.02 )
(2.53 )
—

297

1.76

19.89%
20.03
20.14
20.25
20.36
20.33

(47 )
(33 )
(22 )
(11 )
—
(3 )

(1) Assumes an immediate uniform change in interest rates at all maturities.
(2) EVE is the discounted present value of expected cash flows from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
contracts.
(3) Present value of asets represents the discounted present value of incoming cash flows on interest-earning
assets.
(4) EVE Ratio represents EVE divided by the present value of assets.
We use various assumptions in assessing interest rate risk. These assumptions relate to interest rates, loan
prepayment rates, deposit decay rates and the market values of certain assets under differing interest rate scenarios,
among others. As with any method of measuring interest rate risk, certain shortcomings are inherent in the methods
of analysis presented in the foregoing table. For example, although certain assets and liabilities may have similar
maturities or periods to repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates. Also, the
interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates,
while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as
adjustable-rate mortgage loans, have features that restrict changes in interest rates on a short-term basis and over the
life of the asset. Further, if there is a change in interest rates, expected rates of prepayments on loans and early
withdrawals from certificates could deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table. Prepayment
rates can have a significant impact on interest income. Because of the large percentage of loans we hold, rising or
falling interest rates have a significant impact on the prepayment speeds of our earning assets that in turn affect the
rate sensitivity position. When interest rates rise, prepayments tend to slow. When interest rates fall, prepayments
tend to rise. Our asset sensitivity would be reduced if prepayments slow and vice versa. While we believe these
assumptions to be reasonable, there can be no assurance that assumed prepayment rates will approximate actual
future loan repayment activity.
Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-04, “Receivables — Troubled Debt Restructurings by
Creditors (Subtopic 310-40): Reclassification of Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans
upon Foreclosure.” The amendment in this guidance clarifies when a repossession or foreclosure occurs, and a
creditor is considered to have received physical possession of residential real estate property collateralizing a
consumer mortgage loan. Under ASU No. 2014-04, physical possession occurs, upon either the creditor obtaining
legal title to the residential real estate property upon completion of a foreclosure or the borrower conveying all
interest in the residential real estate property to the creditor to satisfy that loan through completion of a deed in lieu
of foreclosure or through a similar legal agreement. ASU No. 2014-04
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is intended to reduce diversity in practice and is effective for public business entities for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2014. The adoption of this ASU in the first quarter of 2015 did not have a material impact on
Central Federal’s financial statements.
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01 “Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities,” an amendment to address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation, and
disclosure of financial instruments. This amendment supersedes the guidance to classify equity securities with
readily determinable fair values into different categories, requires equity securities to be measured at fair value with
changes in the fair value recognized through net income, and simplifies the impairment assessment of equity
investments without readily determinable fair values. The amendment requires public business entities that are
required to disclose the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet to
measure that fair value using the exit price notion. The amendment requires an entity to present separately in other
comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a change in the
instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has elected to measure the liability at fair value in accordance with
the fair value option. The amendment requires separate presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by
measurement category and form of financial asset on the balance sheet or in the accompanying notes to the financial
statements. The amendment reduces diversity in current practice by clarifying that an entity should evaluate the
need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available for sale securities in combination with the
entity’s other deferred tax assets. This amendment is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017,
including interim periods within those fiscal years. Entities should apply the amendment by means of a cumulativeeffect adjustment as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption, with the exception of the amendment related to
equity securities without readily determinable fair values, which should be applied prospectively to equity
investments that exist as of the date of adoption. Central Federal intends to adopt the accounting standard during the
first quarter of 2018, as required, and is currently evaluating the impact of implementation.
Effect of Inflation and Changing Prices
The financial statements and related financial data presented in this report have been prepared according to
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, which require the measurement of financial positions
and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering the change in the relative purchasing power
of money over time due to inflation. The primary impact of inflation on our operations is reflected in increased
operating costs. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are
monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates generally have a more significant impact on a financial institution’s
performance than do general levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or to the
same extent as the prices of goods and services.
Item 7A.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

This item is not applicable to smaller reporting companies such as Central Federal Bancshares.
Item 8.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated audited financial statements for Central Federal Bancshares are a part of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and may be found beginning on page F-1.
Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A.

Controls and Procedures

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures . As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation was
carried out, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosures controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, the principal executive
officer and the principal financial officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures are effective.
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(b) Internal Control Over Financial Reporting . This annual report does not include a report of management’s
assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting or an attestation report of the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by rules of the SEC for newly public
companies.
(c) Changes to Internal Control Over Financial Reporting . There was no change in the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting during the most recently completed fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B.

Other Information

None.
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PART III
Item 10.

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information called for by this item concerning the identification, business experience and qualifications of the
Central Federal Bancshares directors will be included in our Proxy Statement (Schedule 14A) to be filed with SEC
within 120 days of the Company’s fiscal year end in connection with its 2016 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
currently scheduled to be held on May 17, 2016 (the “Proxy Statement”), under the headings “Corporate
Governance and Board Matters,” “Audit Related Matters,” and “Item 1 — Election Of Directors.” Information
called for by this item concerning compliance with section 16(a) of the Exchange Act will be included in the Proxy
Statement under the heading “Other Information Relating to Directors and Executive Officers — Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance,” and is incorporated herein by reference.
Central Federal Bancshares has adopted a Code of Ethics (“Code”) that applies to the principal executive
officer and principal financial officer and all other employees and directors. The Code addresses conflicts of
interest, the treatment of confidential information, general employee conduct and compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations. Persons interested in obtaining a copy of the Code of Ethics may do so by writing to the
Company at: Central Federal Bancshares, Inc., 210 West 10th Street, Rolla, Missouri 65401, Attention: Secretary.
Item 11.

Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Executive
Officer Compensation” in the Proxy Statement.
Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Beneficial
Ownership” in the Proxy Statement.
Item 13.

Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13 related to certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated
herein by reference to the section entitled “Other Information Relating to Directors and Executive Officers —
Transactions with Related Parties” in the Proxy Statement. The information required under this Item 13 related to
Director Independence is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Corporate Governance and Board
Matters” in the Proxy Statement.
Item 14.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Item 2 —
Ratification of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the Company’s Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
Item 15.

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

Documents Filed as Part of this Report
1.

Financial Statements . The following are filed as a part of this document under Item 8:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2015 and 2014
Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
Statements of Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
Notes to Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules : None. All financial statement schedules have been omitted as the
required information is inapplicable or has been included in the Notes to Financial Statements.
3.

Exhibits .
 3.1
 3.2
 4.0
 10.2
 10.3



21
24
31


32



 101

*

Articles of Incorporation of Central Federal Bancshares, Inc.*


Bylaws of Central Federal Bancshares, Inc.*

Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Central Federal Bancshares, Inc.*
Employment Agreement, dated January 12, 2016, between Central Federal Bancshares, Inc., 
Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla and William A. Stoltz**

Change in Control Agreement, dated January 12, 2016, between Central Federal Savings
and Loan Association of Rolla and Barbara Hamilton**
Subsidiaries
Power of Attorney (included on signature pages)
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal
Financial Officer
Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
The following materials from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2015, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language):
(i) the Statements of Financial Condition, (ii) the Statements of Income; (iii) the Statements
of Comprehensive Income; (iv) the Statements of Equity, (v) the Statements of Cash Flows;
and (vi) the Notes to the Financial Statements

Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-206874), as
amended, initially filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 11, 2015.

** Management contract or compensatory agreement or arrangement.
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MICHAEL TROKEY & COMPANY, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
10411 CLAYTON ROAD
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63131
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors
Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla
Rolla, Missouri
We have audited the accompanying statements of financial condition of Central Federal Savings and Loan
Association of Rolla (“Association”) as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and the related statements of income,
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Association’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Association is not required to have, nor were
we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

St. Louis, Missouri
March 29, 2016
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CENTRAL FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION OF ROLLA
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

ASSETS
Cash and Due from Financial Institutions
Federal Funds Sold

December 31,
2015

December 31,
2014


$ 24,910,000
100,000


$ 7,802,000
100,000

25,010,000
2,480,000

7,902,000
2,480,000

436,000

31,000

77,000

78,000

49,910,000

52,184,000

608,000
676,000
115,000
91,000
1,490,000

243,000
739,000
122,000
144,000
54,000

$ 80,893,000

$ 63,977,000





$ 21,845,000

$ 2,640,000

44,770,000

47,642,000

66,615,000

50,282,000

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Certificates of Deposits in Other Financial Institutions
Securities Available-for-Sale at Fair Value (Amortized cost is $423,000 at
December 31, 2015, and $15,000 at December 31, 2014)
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Stock, at Cost
Loans, Net of Allowance for Loan Losses of $261,000 at December 31,
2015 and $279,000 at December 31, 2014
Foreclosed Assets
Premises and Equipment, Net
Accrued Interest Receivable
Deferred Tax Asset, Net
Other Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Noninterest-Bearing
Interest-Bearing
Total Deposits
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

628,000

113,000

67,243,000

50,395,000

13,640,000

13,571,000

EQUITY
Retained Earnings – Substantially Restricted
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

10,000

11,000

13,650,000

13,582,000

$ 80,893,000

$ 63,977,000

Total Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION OF ROLLA
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Year Ended
December 31,
2015

2014

$2,302,000
68,000

$ 2,411,000
55,000

2,370,000

2,466,000

461,000

494,000

Total Interest Expense

461,000

494,000

NET INTEREST INCOME

1,909,000

1,972,000

—

60,000

1,909,000

1,912,000

Customer Service Fees

47,000

49,000

Other Income

19,000

23,000

66,000

72,000

INTEREST INCOME
Loans, Including Fees
Securities and Other
Total Interest Income
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES
NONINTEREST INCOME

Total Noninterest Income
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Compensation and Employee Benefits

1,064,000

1,054,000

Data Processing and Other Outside Services

254,000

256,000

FDIC Insurance and Regulatory Assessment

80,000

83,000

Occupancy and Equipment

212,000

215,000

Legal and Professional Services

95,000

54,000

Supplies, Telephone, and Postage

43,000

46,000

Operations of Foreclosed Assets

24,000

11,000

Other

90,000

86,000

1,862,000

1,805,000

113,000

179,000

44,000

60,000

69,000

$ 119,000

Total Noninterest Expense
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET INCOME

$

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION OF ROLLA
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year Ended
December 31,

NET INCOME
Other Comprehensive Loss:
Unrealized Losses on Securities Available-for-Sale
Income Tax Benefit

2015

2014

$69,000

$ 119,000

(3,000 )
2,000

Total Other Comprehensive Loss, net of tax

(1,000 )

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

$68,000

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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(13,000 )
5,000
(8,000 )
$ 111,000
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CENTRAL FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION OF ROLLA
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

Total

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2013
Net Income
Other Comprehensive Loss

$13,452,000
119,000
—

$ 19,000
—
(8,000 )

$13,471,000
119,000
(8,000 )

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2014
Net Income
Other Comprehensive Loss

13,571,000
69,000
—

11,000
—
(1,000 )

13,582,000
69,000
(1,000 )

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2015

$13,640,000

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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CENTRAL FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION OF ROLLA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended
December 31,
2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities:

$

Provision for Loan Losses
Depreciation
Deferred Income Tax
Net Changes in:
Accrued Interest Receivable
Other Assets
Other Liabilities

69,000

2014

$ 119,000

—
75,000
—

60,000
73,000
(21,000 )

7,000
(1,381,000 )
515,000

Net Cash (Used In) Provided by Operating Activities

18,000
54,000
(4,000 )

(715,000 )

299,000

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Change in FHLB Stock

1,000

Purchase of Securities Available-for-Sale

—

(408,000 )

Net Decrease in Loans

—

1,909,000

Purchases of Premises and Equipment

1,315,000

(12,000 )

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

(77,000 )

1,490,000

1,238,000

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Increase (Decrease) in Deposits
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

16,333,000

(893,000 )

16,333,000

(893,000 )

17,108,000

644,000

7,902,000

7,258,000

$ 25,010,000

$ 7,902,000

Interest Paid on Deposits

$

461,000

$ 494,000

Income Taxes Paid, Net of Refunds Received

$

56,000

$

46,000

$

365,000

$

—

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURE

Noncash Investing Activities:
Transfer of Loans to Foreclosed Assets

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
F-6

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CENTRAL FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION OF ROLLA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations
Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla (the “Association”) is a community-oriented financial
institution, dedicated to serving the financial service needs of customers within its market area, which generally
consists of Phelps County, Missouri, although it also services customers in the contiguous Missouri counties of
Dent, Texas, Crawford, Pulaski and Maries. The Association offers a variety of loan and deposit products to meet
the borrowing needs of its customers. The Association operates out of its office in Rolla, Missouri. The Association
is subject to regulation, examination, and supervision by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, or OCC, its
primary federal regulator, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FDIC, its deposit insurer.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term include the
determination of the allowance for loan losses, valuation of foreclosed assets, valuation of deferred tax assets, and
fair values of financial instruments.
Concentrations of Credit Risk
Most of the Association’s activities are with customers located within Phelps County, Missouri and
surrounding areas. Note 3 discusses the types of securities that the Association invests in. Note 4 discusses the types
of lending that the Association engages in.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances due from
financial institutions and federal funds sold, all of which have an original maturity within 90 days. Cash flows from
loans and deposits are reported net.
The Association maintains cash in correspondent bank accounts which exceed the federally insured limits. The
Association’s management monitors the balances in these accounts and periodically assesses the financial condition
of the correspondent banks. Interest bearing funds in cash and cash equivalents were $23,743,000 and $6,494,000 as
of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.
Certificates of Deposit in Other Financial Institutions
Certificates of deposit in other financial institutions are carried at cost and generally mature in five years or
less.
Securities
Securities are classified as available-for-sale and are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses
reported in other comprehensive income (loss). Realized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale are
included in noninterest income and, when applicable, are reported as a reclassification adjustment, net of tax, in
other comprehensive income. Gains and losses on sales of securities are determined using the specific identification
method on the trade date. The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts are recognized in interest
income using the interest method over the period to maturity.
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Securities (continued)
Declines in the fair value of individual available-for-sale securities below their cost that are other than
temporary result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value. The Association monitors the
investment security portfolio for impairment on an individual security basis and has a process in place to identify
securities that could potentially have a credit impairment that is other than temporary. This process involves
analyzing the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than the amortized cost basis, the
market liquidity for the security, the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, expected cash flows,
and the Association’s intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to recover the
temporary loss. The ability to hold is determined whether it is more likely than not that the Association will be
required to sell the security before its anticipated recovery. A decline in value due to a credit event that is considered
other than temporary is recorded as a loss in noninterest income.
FHLB Stock, at Cost
The Association is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Des Moines (FHLB) system. Members are
required to own a certain amount of stock based on the level of borrowings and other factors, and may invest in
additional amounts. FHLB stock is carried at cost and periodically evaluated for impairment. Because this stock is
viewed as a long term investment, impairment is based on ultimate recovery at par value. Both cash and stock
dividends are reported as income. Management believes no impairment charge was necessary related to the FHLB
stock for the years ended December 31, 2015 or 2014.
Loans
Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off
generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge-offs, the allowance for loan
losses, any deferred fees or costs on originated loans, and premiums or discounts on purchased loans.
Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. The Association has determined the application of
guidance in the nonrefundable fees and other costs standard regarding the deferral of loan origination fees and direct
loan origination costs, does not have a material effect on its financial statements. As such, these fees and costs have
been primarily recognized during the period they are collected and incurred, respectively. The accrual of interest on
mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days past due unless the credit is wellsecured and in process of collection. Credit card loans and other personal loans are typically charged off no later
than 180 days past due. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on
nonaccrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.
All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off is reversed against
interest income and amortization of related deferred loan fees or costs is suspended. The interest on these loans is
accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. The cash-basis is
used when a determination has been made that the principal and interest of the loan is collectible. If collectability of
the principal and interest is in doubt, payments are applied to loan principal. The determination of ultimate
collectability is supported by a current, well documented credit evaluation of the borrower’s financial condition and
prospects for repayment, including consideration of the borrower’s sustained historical repayment performance and
other relevant factors. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually
due are brought current, the borrower has demonstrated a period of sustained performance, and future payments are
reasonably assured. A sustained period of repayment performance generally would be a minimum of six months.
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Loans (continued)
Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses (allowance) is an estimate of loan losses inherent in the Association’s loan
portfolio. The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses which is charged to expense. Additions to
the allowance are expected to maintain the adequacy of the total allowance after loan losses and loan growth. Loan
losses are charged off against the allowance when the Association determines the loan balance to be uncollectible.
Cash received on previously charged-off amounts is recorded as a recovery to the allowance.
The allowance consists of three primary components, general allowances, specific allowances related to
impaired loans, and unallocated allowances. The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on
historical losses adjusted for qualitative factors. The historical loss experience is determined by portfolio segment
and is based on the actual loss history experienced by the Association over the most recent three years. This actual
loss experience is adjusted for qualitative factors based on the risks present for each portfolio segment. These
qualitative factors include consideration of the following: levels of and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans;
levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries; trends in volume and terms of loans; effects of any changes in
risk selection and underwriting standards; other changes in lending policies, procedures, and practices; experience,
ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff; national and local economic trends and
conditions; industry conditions; and effects of changes in credit concentrations. These factors are inherently
subjective and are driven by the repayment risk associated with each portfolio segment.
A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Association will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Loans for which impairment is measured generally include loans classified
as substandard, doubtful, non-accrual, or are considered a troubled debt restructured loan. When a loan is impaired,
the Association measures impairment based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
original contractual interest rate, except that as a practical expedient, it may measure impairment based on an
observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if collateral dependent. A loan is collateral dependent if
the repayment is expected to be provided solely by the underlying collateral.
Allowance allocations other than general and specific are included in the unallocated portion. The unallocated
allowance reflect the imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating
the general allowance.
Under certain circumstances, the Association will provide borrowers relief through loan restructurings. A
restructuring of debt constitutes a troubled debt restructuring (TDR) if the Association for economic or legal reasons
related to the borrower’s financial difficulties grants a concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise
consider. Restructured loans typically present an elevated level of credit risk as the borrowers are not able to
perform according to the original contractual terms. Loans that are reported as TDRs are considered impaired and
measured for impairment as described above in the calendar year of the restructuring. In subsequent years, a
restructured loan may cease being classified as impaired if the loan was modified at a market rate and is performing
according to the modified terms. TDR concessions can include reduction of interest rates, extension of maturity
dates, forgiveness of principal or interest due, or acceptance of other assets in full or partial satisfaction of the debt.
Restructured loans can involve loans remaining on nonaccrual, moving to nonaccrual, or continuing on accrual
status, depending on the individual facts and circumstances of the borrower. Nonaccrual restructured loans are
included and treated with other nonaccrual loans.
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Allowance for Loan Losses (continued)
The Association assigns a risk rating to all loans to identify credit risks and to assess the overall collectability
of the portfolio. These risk ratings are also subject to examination by the Association’s regulators. During the
internal reviews, management monitors and analyzes the financial condition of borrowers and guarantors, trends in
the industries in which the borrowers operate and the fair values of collateral securing the loans. These credit quality
indicators are used to assign a risk rating to each individual loan. The risk ratings can be grouped into five major
categories, defined as follows:
Unclassified: An unclassified loan is a credit with no existing or known potential weaknesses deserving of
management’s close attention.
Special Mention: Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves management’s
close attention. If left uncorrected, this potential weakness may result in deterioration of the repayment
prospects for the loan or of the Association’s credit position at some future date. Special Mention loans are not
adversely classified and do not expose the Association to sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification.
Substandard: Loans classified as substandard are not adequately protected by the current net worth and
paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans classified as Substandard have a
well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the repayment of the debt. Well-defined weaknesses
include a borrower’s lack of marketability, inadequate cash flow or collateral support, failure to complete
construction on time, or the failure to fulfill economic expectations. They are characterized by the distinct
possibility that the Association will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Doubtful: Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard,
with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or repayment in full, on the basis of currently
existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable.
Loss:

Loans classified as loss are considered uncollectible and charged off immediately.

The Association maintains a separate general allowance for each portfolio segment. These portfolio segments
include commercial business, commercial and multi-family real estate, residential real estate, and consumer and
other with risk characteristics described as follows:
Commercial Business: Commercial business loans generally possess a lower inherent risk of loss than real
estate portfolio segments because these loans are generally underwritten to existing cash flows of operating
businesses. Debt coverage is provided by business cash flows and economic trends influenced by
unemployment rates and other key economic indicators are closely correlated to the credit quality of these
loans.
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate: Commercial and multi-family real estate loans generally
possess a higher inherent risk of loss than other real estate portfolio segments. Adverse economic
developments or an overbuilt market impact commercial real estate projects and may result in troubled loans.
Trends in vacancy rates of commercial properties impact the credit quality of these loans. High vacancy rates
reduce operating revenues and the ability for the properties to produce sufficient cash flow to service debt
obligations.
Residential Real Estate: The degree of risk in residential mortgage lending depends primarily on the loan
amount in relation to collateral value, the interest rate and the borrower’s ability to repay in an orderly fashion.
These loans generally possess a lower inherent risk of loss than other real estate portfolio segments. Economic
trends determined by unemployment rates and other key economic indicators are closely correlated to the
credit quality of these loans.
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Allowance for Loan Losses (continued)
Consumer and Other: The consumer and other loan portfolio are usually comprised of a large number of
small loans scheduled to be amortized over a specific period. Most loans are made directly for consumer
purchases. Economic trends determined by unemployment rates and other key economic indicators are closely
correlated to the credit quality of these loans.
Although management believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its estimates. At
least quarterly, the board of directors reviews the adequacy of the allowance, including consideration of the relevant
risks in the portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors. If the board of directors and management
determine that changes are warranted based on those reviews, the allowance is adjusted. Central Federal is subject to
periodic examination by its primary regulator, which may require additions to the allowance based on judgments
regarding loan portfolio information available at the time of its examinations.
Off-Balance Sheet Credit Related Financial Instruments
In the ordinary course of business, the Association has entered into commitments to extend credit, including
commitments under credit arrangements, and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded when
they are funded.
Foreclosed Assets
Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value
less estimated selling cost at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Any write-downs based on the
asset’s fair value at the date of acquisition are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent to foreclosure,
valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets held for sale are carried at the lower of the new
cost basis or fair value, less cost to sell. This evaluation is inherently subjective and requires estimates that are
susceptible to significant revisions as more information becomes available. Due to potential changes in conditions, it
is at least reasonably possible that changes in fair values will occur in the near term and that such changes could
materially affect the amounts reported in the Association’s financial statements.
Impairment losses on assets to be held and used are measured at the amount by which the carrying amount of a
property exceeds its fair value. Costs of significant asset improvements are capitalized, whereas costs relating to
holding assets are expensed. Revenues and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are
included in operations of foreclosed assets.
Premises and Equipment
Land is carried at cost. Other premises and equipment are carried at costs net of accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method based principally on the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Useful lives range from 15 to 40 years for building and improvements; 2 to 15 years for furniture, fixtures and
equipment; and 5 years for automobiles. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred while major additions
and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions are included in current operations.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
The Association tests long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by
a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets (continued)
expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized
is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to
be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less estimated costs to sell.
Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the
enactment date.
These calculations are based on many complex factors including estimates of the timing of reversals of
temporary differences, the interpretation of federal and state income tax laws, and a determination of the differences
between the tax and the financial reporting basis of assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ significantly
from the estimates and interpretations used in determining the current and deferred income tax liabilities.
Under generally accepted accounting principles, a valuation allowance is required to be recognized if it is
“more likely than not” that the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The determination of the realizability of the
deferred tax assets is highly subjective and dependent upon judgment concerning management’s evaluation of both
positive and negative evidence, the forecasts of future income, applicable tax planning strategies, and assessments of
the current and future economic and business conditions.
The Association adopted the provision of accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. These rules establish a
higher standard for tax benefits to meet before they can be recognized in a Association’s financial statements. The
Association can recognize in financial statements the impact of a tax position taken, or expected to be taken, if it is
more likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit based on the technical merit of the position. The
Association had no uncertain tax positions during the years ended December 31, 2015 or 2014.
The Association files federal and state income tax returns, and it is not subject to federal or state income tax
examinations for taxable years prior to 2012.
Comprehensive Income
Recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are included in net income. Certain changes in assets and
liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale, are reported as a separate component
of the equity section of the statements of financial condition, such items, along with net income, are components of
comprehensive income.
New Accounting Standards
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, “Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities,” an amendment to address certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation, and
disclosure of financial instruments. This amendment supersedes the guidance to classify
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New Accounting Standards (continued)
equity securities with readily determinable fair values into different categories, requires equity securities to be
measured at fair value with changes in the fair value recognized through net income, and simplifies the impairment
assessment of equity investments without readily determinable fair values. The amendment requires public business
entities that are required to disclose the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance
sheet to measure that fair value using the exit price notion. The amendment requires an entity to present separately
in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a change
in the instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has elected to measure the liability at fair value in accordance
with the fair value option. The amendment requires separate presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities
by measurement category and form of financial asset on the balance sheet or in the accompanying notes to the
financial statements. The amendment reduces diversity in current practice by clarifying that an entity should
evaluate the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available for sale securities in
combination with the entity’s other deferred tax assets. This amendment is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Entities should apply the amendment by
means of a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption, with the exception of the
amendment related to equity securities without readily determinable fair values, which should be applied
prospectively to equity investments that exist as of the date of adoption. The Association intends to adopt the
accounting standard during the first quarter of 2018, as required, and is currently evaluating the impact of
implementation.
Subsequent Events
In preparing these financial statements, the Association has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
NOTE 2

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT IN OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Certificates of deposit in other financial institutions are as follows:

Certificates of Deposit at Cost Maturing In:
One Year or Less
One Year to Five Years
Over Five Years

NOTE 3

December 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

$ 248,000
2,232,000
—
$2,480,000

$ 496,000
1,488,000
496,000
$ 2,480,000

SECURITIES

The carrying amount and estimated fair market value of investment securities classified as available-for-sale
are summarized as follows:
December 31, 2015
Gross
Gross
Amortized
Unrealized
Unrealized
Cost
Gains
 
 
  Losses  

Muncipal Obligation
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Stock
Total

$408,000
15,000
$423,000

$ 6,000
7,000
$ 13,000

$—
—
$—

At December 31, 2015, the S&P credit rating of the municipal obligation was an AA+.
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SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

December 31, 2014
Gross
Gross
Amortized
Unrealized
Unrealized
Cost
Gains
 
 
  Losses  

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Stock

$ 15,000

$ 16,000

$—

Fair
Value 

$31,000

During the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Association did not sell any securities.
The following table indicated amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available-for-sale at
December 31, 2015 based upon contractual maturity.
Amortized Cost

Five Years or Less
Over Ten Years
No Stated Maturity Date

$

Total
NOTE 4

—
408,000
15,000

$423,000

Fair Value

$

—
414,000
22,000

$ 436,000

LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Loans are summarized as follows:
December 31,

Commercial Business
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Consumer and Other

2015

2014

$ 1,951,000
16,116,000
31,705,000
418,000

$ 1,880,000
15,993,000
34,179,000
432,000

50,190,000
(261,000 )
(19,000 )

Allowance for Loan Losses
Net Deferred Loan Fees
Loans, Net

$ 49,910,000

52,484,000
(279,000 )
(21,000 )
$ 52,184,000

Residential real estate loans at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 include loans secured by one-tofour family, non-owner occupied properties of $10,177,000 and $11,759,000, respectively.
At December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, construction loans were $2,011,000 and $826,000,
respectively. Loans in process at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were $609,000 and $282,000,
respectively.
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The allowance for loan losses and recorded investment in loans are as follows:

December 31, 2015

Allowance for Loan Losses:
Balance at Beginning of Year
Provision for Loan Losses

Commercial
Commercial and Multi-Family Residential Consumer
Business
Real Estate
Real Estate and Other  Unallocated  

$

Loans Charged-Off
Recoveries of Loans Previously
Charged-Off
Balance at End of Year
$
Ending Balance: Individually Evaluated
for Impairment
$
Ending Balance: Collectively Evaluated
for Impairment
$

4,000
1,000

$

46,000 $
(16,000)

193,000 $
6,000

4,000
2,000

—

—

(17,000)

(2,000)

—

—

1,000

$ 32,000
7,000

Total

$



279,000
—

—

(19,000)

—

—

1,000

$ 39,000

$

261,000

$

—

$

15,000

$ 39,000

$

246,000

$

679,000

5,000

$

30,000

$

183,000 $

4,000

—

$

—

$

15,000 $

—

5,000

$

30,000

$

168,000 $

4,000

—

$

390,000

$

289,000 $

—

Loans:
Ending Balance: Individually Evaluated
for Impairment
$

Ending Balance: Collectively Evaluated
for Impairment
$ 1,951,000

December 31, 2014

$ 15,726,000

$31,416,000 $ 418,000

$49,511,000

Commercial
Commercial and Multi-Family Residential Consumer
Business
Real Estate
Real Estate and Other  Unallocated  

Total


Allowance for Loan Losses:
Balance at Beginning of Year
Provision for Loan Losses

$

Loans Charged-Off
Recoveries of Loans Previously
Charged-Off

3,000
1,000

$

142,000 $
(96,000)

—

—

(129,000)

(4,000)

—

351,000
60,000
(133,000)

1,000

—

$

46,000

$

193,000 $

4,000

$ 32,000

$

279,000

Ending Balance: Individually Evaluated
for Impairment
$

—

$

—

$

— $

—

$

—

$

—

Ending Balance: Collectively Evaluated
for Impairment
$

4,000

$

46,000

$

193,000 $

4,000

$ 32,000

$

279,000

Loans:
Ending Balance: Individually Evaluated
for Impairment
$

—

$

442,000

$

590,000 $

3,000

$ 1,035,000

$33,589,000 $ 429,000

$51,449,000

$ 15,551,000

—

$ 53,000 $
(21,000)

4,000

Ending Balance: Collectively Evaluated
for Impairment
$ 1,880,000

—

4,000
3,000

$

Balance at End of Year

—

149,000 $
173,000

1,000

At December 31, 2015, there was one impaired loan, with a principal balance of $289,000 with an allowance
of $15,000 recorded. There were no impaired loans with an allowance recorded at December 31, 2014. See Note 15
for impairment losses related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of impaired loans.
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The following tables show the loans allocated by management’s internal risk ratings:

December 31, 2015

Commercial
Business

Risk Profile by Risk Rating
Commercial
and MultiFamily Real
Residential
Consumer
Estate
Real Estate
and Other

Risk Rating:
Unclassified
Special Mention
Substandard
Total

$1,951,000
—
—
$1,951,000

$15,726,000
—
390,000
$16,116,000

December 31, 2014

Commercial
Business

Risk Profile by Risk Rating
Commercial
and MultiFamily Real
Residential
Consumer
Estate
Real Estate
and Other

Risk Rating:
Unclassified
Special Mention
Substandard
Total

$1,631,000
198,000
51,000
$1,880,000

$15,993,000
—
—
$15,993,000

$31,049,000
225,000
431,000
$31,705,000

$32,795,000
679,000
705,000
$34,179,000

$418,000
—
—
$418,000

Total

$49,144,000
225,000
821,000
$50,190,000



$429,000
—
3,000
$432,000

Total

$50,848,000
877,000
759,000
$52,484,000



The following tables show the aging analysis of the loan portfolio by time past due:
Accruing Interest

December 31, 2015

Commercial Business
Commerical and Multi-Family Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Consumer and Other

30 – 89 Days
Past Due

Current

$ 1,951,000
15,726,000
31,130,000
406,000

$

—
—
186,000
12,000

$49,213,000

$ 198,000


90 Days
or More
Past Due

$

—
—
100,000
—

Total
Nonaccrual

$


Toal
Loans

—
390,000
289,000
—

$ 1,951,000
16,116,000
31,705,000
418,000

$100,000

$ 679,000

$50,190,000

90 Days
or More
Past Due

Total
Nonaccrual

Toal
Loans

Accruing Interest



December 31, 2014

Commercial Business
Commerical and Multi-Family Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Consumer and Other

Current

30 – 89 Days
Past Due

$ 1,880,000
15,942,000
33,132,000
417,000

$

—
—
145,000
12,000

$51,371,000

$ 157,000

$

—
—
312,000
—

$312,000

$

—
51,000
590,000
3,000

$ 1,880,000
15,993,000
34,179,000
432,000

$ 644,000

$52,484,000

Interest income that would have been recorded for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
had nonaccrual loans been current according to their original terms, amounted to $23,000 and $39,000, respectively.
Interest income recognized on nonaccrual loans during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to
$5,000 and $2,000, respectively.
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LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The following tables present information related to impaired loans:
Recorded
Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

$ 390,000

$ 390,000

Residential Real Estate

—

Consumer and Other

December 31, 2015

Related
Allowance

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized 

$

—

$ 391,000

$ 12,000

130,000

—

3,000

5,000

—

—

—

—

—

$ 390,000

$ 520,000

$

—

$ 394,000

$ 17,000

$ 289,000

$ 306,000

$ 15,000

$ 301,000

$

$ 390,000

$ 390,000

$

—

$ 391,000

$ 12,000

289,000

436,000

15,000

304,000

5,000

$ 679,000

$ 826,000

$ 15,000

$ 695,000

$ 17,000

Recorded
Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income
Recognized 

$ 442,000

$ 471,000

$

—

$ 456,000

$ 12,000

590,000

837,000

—

598,000

2,000

3,000

3,000

—

3,000

—

$1,035,000

$1,311,000

—

$1,057,000

$ 14,000

Loans With No Related Allowance Recorded:
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate

Total Loans With No Related Allowance
Recorded
Loans With an Allowance Recorded:
Residential Real Estate

—

Total Impaired Loans:
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Total

December 31, 2014

Loans With No Related Allowance Recorded:
Commercial and Multi-Family Real Estate
Residential Real Estate
Consumer and Other
Total Loans With No Related Allowance
Recorded

$

The Association does not have material commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers with loans whose
terms have been modified in TDRs or whose loans are on nonaccrual.
There were no loans modified in TDRs for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.
As of December 31, 2015, the Association did not have any loan in process of foreclosure.
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NOTE 5

FORECLOSED ASSETS

Activity in foreclosed assets is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2015

2014

Balance at Beginning of Year
Additions
Sales
Loss on Sales

$243,000
365,000
—
—

$ 243,000
—
—
—

Balance at End of Year

$608,000

$ 243,000

Foreclosed assets by property type are as follows:
December 31,

Commercial Real Estate
Residential Real Estate

NOTE 6

2015

2014

$243,000
365,000

$ 243,000
—

$608,000

$ 243,000

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Components of premises and equipment are as follows:
December 31,

Land
Building and Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Automobile
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Premises and Equipment, Net
NOTE 7

2015

2014

$ 229,000
1,115,000
482,000
13,000

$ 229,000
1,115,000
475,000
13,000

1,839,000
1,163,000

1,832,000
1,093,000

$ 676,000

$ 739,000

DEPOSITS

Deposits consist of the following:
December 31,

Noninterest-Bearing Demand Deposits
Interest-Bearing Demand Deposits
Savings
Certificates of Deposit, $250,000 or more
Certificates of Deposit, less than $250,000
Total
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2015

2014

$ 21,845,000
18,765,000
3,485,000
3,018,000
19,502,000

$ 2,640,000
18,936,000
3,625,000
3,535,000
21,546,000

$ 66,615,000

$ 50,282,000
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NOTE 7

DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and the FDIC’s implementing regulations, $250,000 is the standard
maximum deposit insurance amount for deposits in an insured depository institution that are maintained in the same
ownership right and capacity. Deposits maintained in different rights and capacities are insured separately from each
other.
At December 31, 2015, the demand deposit balances of the Association include approximately $19,236,000 of
funds received in the subscription and community offerings discussed in more detail in Note 17.
As of December 31, 2015, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are as follows:
December 31,
2015

Certificates of Deposit:
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter
Total

$12,218,000
7,189,000
1,425,000
642,000
955,000
91,000
$22,520,000

Deposit interest expense consisted of the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2015
2014

NOW and Money Market Deposit Accounts
Savings
Certificates of Deposit
Total
NOTE 8

$106,000
11,000
344,000
$461,000

$ 92,000
11,000
391,000
$ 494,000

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK AND FEDERAL RESERVE BANK ADVANCES

The Association has entered into an Advances, Pledges, and Security Agreement with the FHLB whereby
mortgage loans have been pledged with a maximum borrowing capacity of $18,615,000 and $20,499,000 at
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. At December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the
Association did not have any advances.
The Association has entered into a Borrower in Custody Arrangement with the Federal Reserve Bank of St.
Louis (FRB). The Association has pledged commercial and consumer loans of approximately $6,111,000 and
$6,512,000 at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. At December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014, the Association did not have any advances from the FRB.
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NOTE 9

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Association has granted loans to officers, directors, and their affiliates
(related parties). Activity associated with loans made to related parties are as follows:
December 31,

Balance at Beginning of Year
Change in Related Parties
New Loans and Advances
Repayments
Balance at End of Year

2015

2014

$ 821,000
1,350,000
220,000
(193,000 )
$2,198,000

$ 716,000
—
171,000
(66,000 )
$ 821,000

Deposits from related parties held by the Association were $2,003,000 and $1,454,000 at December 31, 2015
and December 31, 2014, respectively.
NOTE 10 INCOME TAXES
The components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

Current:
Federal
State
Deferred:
Federal
State

2015

2014

$29,000
15,000

$ 71,000
10,000

44,000

81,000

7,000
(7,000 )

(18,000 )
(3,000 )

—
$44,000

(21,000 )
$ 60,000

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax rates are
summarized as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

Expected Tax Provision at a 34% Rate
Graduated Tax Rate – Benefit
State Tax (Net of Federal Tax Benefit)
Other
Total
Effective Tax Rate

2015

2014

$ 38,000
(12,000 )
4,000
14,000

$61,000
(8,000 )
6,000
1,000

$ 44,000

$60,000

38.9%
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NOTE 10 INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)
The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
December 31,

Deferred Tax Assets:
Allowance for Loan Losses
Deferred Loan Fees
Nonaccrual Loan Interest
Other
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Accumulated Depreciation
Unrealized Gains on Securities Available-for-Sale
Other
Net Deferred Tax Asset

2015

2014

$101,000
7,000
15,000
2,000

$ 148,000
9,000
17,000
21,000

(23,000 )
(3,000 )
(8,000 )
$ 91,000

(36,000 )
(5,000 )
(10,000 )
$ 144,000

Retained earnings includes approximately $1,604,000 which represents tax bad debt reserves for which no
provision for income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. If these tax bad debt
reserves are used for other than loan losses, the amount used will be subject to income taxes at the then prevailing
corporate rate.
NOTE 11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK
In the normal course of business, the Association has outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities, such
as commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit, which are not included in the accompanying financial
statements. The Association’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the
financial instruments for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual
or notional amount of those instruments. The Association uses the same credit policies in making such commitments
as it does for instruments that are included in the statements of financial condition.
The following financial instruments whose contract amount represents credit risk were approximately as
follows:
December 31,

Commitments to Extend Credit
Standby Letters of Credit
Range of Rates on Fixed Rate Commitments

2015

2014

$5,626,000
15,000

$ 2,589,000
15,000

$5,641,000

$ 2,604,000

2.0 – 18.0%

2.4 – 18.0%

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being
drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Association
evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case by case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Association upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation. Collateral held
varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, and income producing commercial
properties.
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Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Association to guarantee the performance
of a customer to a third party. Standby letters-of-credit generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same
as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Association’s policy for obtaining collateral, and the
nature of such collateral, is essentially the same as that involved in making commitments to extend credit.
The Association was not required to perform on any financial guarantees and did not incur any losses on its
commitments.
NOTE 12 LEGAL CONTINGENCIES
The Association may be subject to claims and lawsuits which may arise primarily in the ordinary course of
business. It is the opinion of management, if such claims are made, that the disposition or ultimate resolution of the
claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Association.
NOTE 13 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The Association has a Savings Incentive Match Plan (SIMPLE IRA) plan for full-time employees. A
participant may elect to make pre-tax contributions up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue
Service. The Association made matching contributions to participants as defined by the Plan of $14,000 and
$15,000 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. There are no vesting requirements.
NOTE 14 REGULATORY MATTERS
The Association is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal and state
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly
additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Association’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action, the Association must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The
capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk
weightings, and other factors.
As of December 31, 2015, the most recent notification from the banking regulators categorized the Association
as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well
capitalized the Association must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, common equity Tier 1 riskbased, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following tables. There are no conditions or events since the
notification that management believes have changed the Association’s category.
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Association to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios set forth in the following table. Management believes, as of December 31, 2015 and
2014, that the Association met all its capital adequacy requirements.
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The Association’s capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table.
Minimum Capital
Requirement

Actual
Amount

December 31, 2015
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets
Common Equity Tier I Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets

$13,813,000
13,552,000

Tier I Capital to Average Assets

Ratio

Amount

Ratio

Minimum to be
Well Capitalized
Amount



Ratio 

36.8% $3,002,000
36.1% 2,252,000

8.0% $3,753,000
6.0% 3,002,000

10.0%
8.0%

13,552,000

36.1%

1,689,000

4.5%

2,439,000

6.5%

13,552,000

20.5%

2,639,000

4.0%

3,299,000

5.0%

10.0%

December 31, 2014
Total Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

$13,863,000

34.7% $3,199,000

8.0% $3,998,000

Tier I Capital to Risk Weighted Assets

13,571,000

33.9%

1,599,000

4.0%

2,399,000

6.0%

Tier I Capital to Average Assets

13,571,000

21.2%

2,558,000

4.0%

3,198,000

5.0%

The Basel III Capital Rules, which became effective January 1, 2015, revised the prompt corrective action
requirements by: (i) introducing a Common Equity Tier 1 risk-based ratio requirement at each level (other than
critically undercapitalized), with the required Common Equity Tier 1 risk-based ratio being 6.5% for “wellcapitalized” status; (ii) increasing the minimum Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio requirement for each category (other
than critically undercapitalized), with the minimum Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio for “well-capitalized” status being
8% (compared to the prior ratio of 6%); and (iii) eliminating the former provision that provided that a bank with a
composite supervisory rating of 1 may have a 3% Leverage Ratio and still be adequately capitalized. The Basel III
Capital Rules did not change the total risk based capital requirement for any prompt corrective action category.
NOTE 15 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The Association categorizes its assets and liabilities measured at fair value into a three-level hierarchy based on
the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority
to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within
different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement. Assets and liabilities valued at fair value are categorized based on the inputs to the valuation
techniques as follows:
Level 1 – Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that an
entity has the ability to access.
Level 2 – Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the
financial instrument. Fair values for these instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted
prices of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows.
Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically based on an entity’s
own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Association may remeasure the carrying value of assets and liabilities
measured on a nonrecurring basis to fair value. Adjustments to fair value usually result when certain assets are
impaired. Such assets are written down from their carrying amounts to their fair value.
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Professional standards allow entities the irrevocable option to elect to measure certain financial instruments and
other items at fair value for the initial and subsequent measurement on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
Association adopted the policy to value certain financial instruments at fair value. The Association has not elected to
measure any existing financial instruments at fair value except available for sale securities; however, it may elect to
measure newly acquired financial instruments at fair value in the future.
Recurring Basis
The Association uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities
and to determine fair value disclosures. The following tables present the balances of assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a recurring basis:
Level 1

December 31, 2015
Securities Available-for-Sale
Municipal Obligation
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Stock

Level 2

Level 3

Total

—
22,000

$414,000
—

$—
—

$414,000
22,000

$22,000

$414,000

$—

$436,000

$31,000

$

$—

$ 31,000

$

December 31, 2014
Securities Available-for-Sale
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. Stock

—



The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value on a
recurring basis, as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.
Securities
When available, the Association uses quoted market prices to determine the fair value of securities; such items
are classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. For the Association’s securities for which quoted prices are not
available for identical securities in an active market, the Association determines fair value utilizing vendors who
apply matrix pricing for similar bonds for which no price is observable or may compile prices from various sources.
Nonrecurring Basis
Certain assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. These assets are not measured at fair value on
an ongoing basis; however, they are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances, such as there is
evidence of impairment or a change in the amount of previously recognized impairment.
Net impairment losses including charge-offs or allocated losses, related to nonrecurring fair value
measurements of certain assets for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:
Level 1

December 31, 2015
Impaired Loans
December 31, 2014
Impaired Loans
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Level 2

Level 3

Impairment
Losses 

$—

$274,000

$

15,000

$—

$265,000

$ 104,000
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Nonrecurring Basis (continued)
The significant inputs used in the fair value measurements for Level 3 assets measured at fair value on the
nonrecurring basis are as follows as of December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014:

Impaired Loans

Valuation
Techniques

Unobservable
Inputs

Evaluation of
Collateral

Estimation of
Value

Range
(Average)


NM*

* Not Meaningful. Evaluations of the underlying assets are completed for each impaired loan with a specific
allowance. The types of collateral vary widely and could include accounts receivables, inventory, a variety of
equipment, and real estate. Collateral evaluations are reviewed and discounted as appropriate based on knowledge
of the specific type of collateral. In the case of real estate, an independent appraisal may be obtained. Types of
discounts considered include aging of receivables, condition of the collateral and potential market for the collateral,
and estimated disposal costs. These discounts will vary from loan to loan, thus providing a range would not be
meaningful.
Impaired Loans
In accordance with the provisions of the loan impairment guidance, impairment was measured for which it is
probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. The fair value of impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods, including collateral value,
market value of similar debt, or discounted cash flows. Those impaired loans not requiring an allowance represent
loans for which the fair value of the expected repayments or collateral exceeds the recorded investments in such
loans. Impaired loans for which an allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral require
classification in the fair value hierarchy. Collateral values are estimated using Level 3 inputs based on customized
discounting criteria.
Impairment amounts on impaired loans represent specific valuation allowance and write-downs during the
period presented on impaired loans that were individually evaluated for impairment based on the estimated fair
value of the collateral less estimated selling costs, excluding impaired loans fully charged-off.
NOTE 16 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, for which it is practicable to estimate that
value, is required whether or not recognized in the statements of financial condition. In cases in which quoted
market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques.
Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimate of
future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to
independent markets and, in many cases could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instruments. Certain
financial instruments with a fair value that is not practicable to estimate and all non-financial instruments are
excluded from the disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not
necessarily represent the underlying value of the Association.
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Accrued Interest
The carrying amounts reported in the statements of financial condition approximate those assets’ and liabilities’
fair values. Accrued interest is primarily accrued interest from loans.
Certificates of Deposit in Other Financial Institutions
Fair values of certificates of deposit in other financial institutions are estimated using discounted cash flow
analyses based on current rates for similar types of deposits.
F-25

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CENTRAL FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION OF ROLLA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
NOTE 16 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Certificates of Deposit in Other Financial Institutions (continued)
FHLB Stock, at Cost
The carrying amount of FHLB stock approximates its fair value based on the redemption provisions of the
FHLB.
Loans
For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are based
on carrying values. The fair values of other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest
rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.
Deposits
The fair values of demand deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the balance
sheet date. The fair values of fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation
that applies current incremental interest rates being offered on certificates of deposit to a schedule of aggregated
expected monthly maturities of the outstanding certificates of deposit.
Off-Balance-Sheet Credit-Related Instruments
Off-Balance-Sheet Credit-Related Instrument commitments are generally of a short-term nature. The contract
amount of such commitments approximates their fair value since the commitments are comprised primarily of
unfunded loan commitments which are generally priced at market at the time of funding.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The estimated fair values, and related carrying or notional amounts, of the Association’s financial instruments
are as follows:
 
 

Financial Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Certificates of Deposits in Other
Financial Institutions
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
Loans, net
Accrued Interest Receivable

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value


Input
Level 

$25,010,000

25,010,000

$ 7,902,000

$ 7,902,000

1

2,480,000

2,493,000

2,480,000

2,519,000

2

77,000

77,000

78,000

78,000

2

49,910,000

50,317,000

52,184,000

52,031,000

3

115,000

115,000

122,000

122,000

2

66,615,000

66,815,000

50,282,000

50,624,000

3

1,000

1,000

1,000

1,000

2

Financial Liabilities:
Deposits
Accrued Interest Payable

NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENT — COMPLETION OF CONVERSION
On August 4, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Association adopted a Plan of Conversion, which was
amended on October 20, 2015, provided for the Association to convert from a federally chartered mutual savings
association into a federally chartered stock savings association and operate as a wholly-owned subsidiary of a newly
chartered savings and loan holding company.
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On January 12, 2016, the Association completed its conversion from the mutual to the stock form of
organization and now operates as a wholly-owned subsidiary of a newly organized savings and loan holding
company, Central Federal Bancshares, Inc. (the “Holding Company”). In connection with the conversion, the
Holding Company sold 1,719,250 shares of common stock in a subscription offering at $10.00 per share, including
the sale of 143,042 shares to the employee stock ownership plan formed by the Association in connection with the
conversion. In addition, the Holding Company contributed an additional 68,770 shares of common stock, and
$100,000 in cash, to the Central Federal Community Foundation, a charitable organization created by the Company
and the Association in connection with the Association’s conversion and the related stock offering. The Holding
Company is incorporated under the laws of the State of Missouri and owns all of the outstanding common stock of
the Association.
The costs of the conversion and issuance of common stock was deferred and deducted from the proceeds of the
offering. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Association had incurred conversion costs of $1,382,000 and $0,
respectively.
In connection with the Plan of Conversion and stock offering, the Association entered into an employment
agreement with the President and Chief Executive Officer that contains change in control provisions and entered
into change in control agreements with another executive officer of the Association.
In accordance with applicable federal conversion regulations, at the time of the completion of the conversion,
the Association established a liquidation account in an amount equal to the Association’s total retained earnings as
of the latest balance sheet date in the final prospectus used in the conversion (which was June 30, 2015). Each
eligible account holder or supplemental account holder is entitled to a proportionate share of this liquidation account
in the event of a complete liquidation of the Association, and only in such event. This share will be reduced if the
eligible account holder’s or supplemental account holder’s deposit balance falls below the amounts on the date of
record as of any December 31 and will cease to exist if the account is closed. The liquidation account will never be
increased despite any increase after conversion in the related deposit balance. The Association may not pay
dividends if those dividends would reduce equity capital below the required liquidation account amount.
The conversion was accounted for as a change in corporate form with the historic basis of the Association’s
assets, liabilities and equity unchanged as a result.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Central Federal Bancshares, Inc.
By: /s/ William A. Stoltz

Date: March 30, 2016

William A. Stoltz
President and Chief Executive Officer

Signatures
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints William A. Stoltz and Barbara E. Hamilton, and each of them, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and
agent, with full power of substitution and resolution, for him and in his name, place, and stead, in any and all
capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this report, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-infact and agents full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to
be done in and about the premises, as fully and to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do
or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.
Signature





/s/ William A. Stoltz



William A. Stoltz
/s/ Michael E. Estey

Title


Date

March 30, 2016 

 Director

March 30, 2016 

 Director

March 30, 2016 

 Director

March 30, 2016 

 Director

March 30, 2016 

 Director

March 30, 2016 

 Director

March 30, 2016 



 President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer, principal financial officer,
& principal accounting officer)
 Chairman of the Board of Directors and Director

March 30, 2016 

Michael E. Estey


/s/ Stephen L. Bowles
Stephen L. Bowles


/s/ Jeffrey L. McKune
Jeffrey L. McKune


/s/ Larry D. Thomas


/s/ James R. Sowers

Larry D. Thomas
James R. Sowers
 /s/ Robert R. Thompson
Robert R. Thompson


/s/ John D. Wiggins
John D. Wiggins
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Description





Articles of Incorporation of Central Federal Bancshares, Inc.*
Bylaws of Central Federal Bancshares, Inc.*
Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Central Federal Bancshares, Inc.*
Employment Agreement, dated January 12, 2016, between Central Federal Bancshares, Inc., Central
Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla and William A. Stoltz**
Change in Control Agreement, dated January 12, 2016, between Central Federal Savings and Loan
Association of Rolla and Barbara Hamilton**

Subsidiaries

Power of Attorney (included on signature pages)

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer
Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of 
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The following materials from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2015, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Statements of
Financial Condition, (ii) the Statements of Income; (iii) the Statements of Comprehensive Income; (iv)
the Statements of Equity, (v) the Statements of Cash Flows; and (vi) the Notes to the Financial
Statements









Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-206874), as
amended, initially filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 11, 2015.

** Management contract or compensatory agreement or arrangement.

Exhibit 10.2
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into on January 12, 2016, by and among CENTRAL FEDERAL
BANCSHARES, INC. , a Missouri corporation (“Bancshares”), Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla (the “Association,” and collectively with
Bancshares, the “Company”), and WILLIAM A. STOLTZ (the “Executive”).
WHEREAS, the Executive serves in positions of substantial responsibility with the Company; and
WHEREAS , the Company and the Executive wish to set forth the terms of the Executive’s employment with the Company and enter into this
Agreement;
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises, the mutual covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration the receipt
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows.
1.

Employment.

(a)
Employment . The Company hereby employs the Executive to serve as president and chief executive officer (“CEO”) of Bancshares and the
Association according to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and for the period stated in Section 1(c) of this Agreement. The Executive hereby accepts
employment according to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and for the period stated in Section 1(c) of this Agreement.
(b)
Duties . As president and CEO, the Executive shall report directly to the boards of directors of Bancshares and the Association. The Executive
shall serve the Company faithfully, diligently, competently, and to the best of the Executive’s ability. It is contemplated by this Agreement that the Executive’s
duties shall be comparable to those presently undertaken by the Executive. The duties of employment shall include such additional executive duties on behalf of
the Company and its operations of a character in keeping with the Executive’s position as may, from time to time, be assigned to the Executive by the boards of
directors of the Company. The Executive shall exclusively devote full working time, energy, and attention to the business of the Company throughout the term of
this Agreement. Without the prior written consent of the boards of directors of the Company during the term of this Agreement, the Executive shall not render
services to or for any person, firm, corporation, or other entity or organization in exchange for compensation, regardless of the form in which the compensation is
paid and regardless of whether it is paid directly or indirectly to the Executive. Nothing in this Section 1(b) shall prevent the Executive from managing personal
investments and affairs, provided that doing so does not interfere with the proper performance of the Executive’s duties and responsibilities under this Agreement.
(c)

Term .

(i)
The term of this Agreement shall include: (i) the initial term, consisting of the period commencing on the date of this Agreement (the
“Effective Date”) and ending on the third anniversary of the Effective Date, plus (ii) any and all extensions of the initial term made pursuant to this Section 1(c).
(ii)
Commencing as of the first anniversary of the Effective Date, and continuing on each anniversary of the Effective Date thereafter, the
disinterested members of the boards of directors may extend the Agreement term for an additional year, so that the remaining term of the Agreement again
becomes 36 months from the applicable anniversary date, unless the Executive elects not to extend the term of this Agreement by giving proper written notice. The
boards of directors will review the Agreement and Executive’s performance annually for purposes of determining whether to extend the Agreement term and

will include the rationale and results of its review in the minutes of the meetings. The boards of directors will notify the Executive as soon as possible after each
annual review whether it has determined to extend the Agreement.
(iii)
Nothing in this Agreement shall mandate or prohibit a continuation of the Executive’s employment following the expiration of the term
of this Agreement, upon such terms and conditions as the Company and the Executive may mutually agree.
2.

Compensation and Benefits.

(a)
Base Salary . In consideration of the Executive’s performance of the obligations under this Agreement, the Company shall pay or cause to be
paid to the Executive a salary at the annual rate of $155,541, payable according to the regular payroll practices of the Company. The Executive’s salary shall be
subject to annual review. The Executive’s salary, as the same may be modified from time to time, is referred to in this Agreement as the “Base Salary.” All
compensation under this Agreement shall be subject to customary income tax withholding and such other employment taxes as are imposed by law.
(b)
Benefit Plans and Perquisites . For as long as the Executive is employed by the Company, the Executive shall be eligible: (i) to participate in
any and all officer or employee compensation, incentive compensation and benefit plans in effect from time to time, including without limitation plans providing
retirement, medical, dental, disability, and group life benefits and including incentive or bonus plans existing on the date of this Agreement or adopted after the
date of this Agreement, provided that the Executive satisfies the eligibility requirements for any the plans or benefits, and (ii) to receive any and all other fringe and
other benefits provided from time to time, including the following:
(i)
Reimbursement of business expenses . The Executive shall be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable business expenses incurred
while performing his obligations under this Agreement, including but not limited to all reasonable business travel and entertainment expenses incurred while acting
at the request of or in the service of the Company, and reasonable expenses for attendance at annual and other periodic meetings of trade associations. Expenses
will be reimbursed if they are submitted in accordance with the Company’s policies and procedures.
(ii)
Facilities . The Company will furnish the Executive with the working facilities and staff customary for executive officers with the
comparable titles and duties of the Executive as set forth in Sections 1(a) and 1(b) of this Agreement and as are necessary for the Executive to perform his duties.
The location of such facilities and staff shall be at the principal administrative offices of the Company, or at such other site or sites customary for such offices and
as agreed to by the parties.
(c)
Vacation; Leave . The Executive shall be entitled to sick leave and 23 weeks’ paid annual vacation in accordance with policies established from
time to time by the Company. In addition to paid vacations and other leave, the boards of directors may grant the Executive a leave or leaves of absence, with or
without pay, at such time or times and upon such terms and conditions as the boards of directors may determine. Vacation time must be taken during the calendar
year in which it is accrued and may be carried over into succeeding calendar years or paid out to the Executive in accordance with the policies of the Company.
The Executive shall take his vacation at a reasonable time or times taking into consideration the needs of the Company.
(d)
Agreement.

Insurance . The Company shall maintain or cause to be maintained liability insurance covering the Executive throughout the term of this
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3.

Employment Termination.
(a)

Termination Because of Death or Disability .

(i)
Death . The Executive’s employment and this Agreement shall terminate automatically at the Executive’s death. If the Executive dies in
active service to the Company, the Executive’s estate shall receive any sums due to the Executive as Base Salary and reimbursement of expenses through the end
of the month in which death occurs.
(ii)
Disability . By delivery of written notice 30 days in advance to the Executive, the Company may terminate the Executive’s employment
and this Agreement due to the Executive’s Disability (as defined below). In the event that the Executive’s employment hereunder terminates due to his Disability,
no termination benefits shall be payable to or in respect of the Executive. For purposes of this Agreement, “Disability” shall mean a physical or mental condition
due to which the Executive shall have been absent from her duties on a full-time basis for a 12 consecutive month period. The Executive’s employment shall be
deemed to have terminated as a result of Disability on the date provided in the notice of termination provided to the Executive by the Company. The Executive
shall not be considered Disabled, however, if the Executive has returned to employment on a full-time basis within 30 days of receiving such notice.
(b)
Involuntary Termination with Cause . The boards of directors may, by written notice to the Executive, immediately terminate the Executive’s
employment and this Agreement at any time for Cause, in which case the Executive shall be entitled to receive only the unpaid Base Salary that has accrued
through the date of termination. The Company shall deliver to the Executive a copy of the resolution duly adopted by the boards of directors of Bancshares and the
Association (after reasonable notice to the Executive and an opportunity for the Executive, together with the Executive’s counsel, to be heard before the boards of
directors, such meeting and the opportunity to be heard to be held prior to, or as soon as reasonably practicable following, termination, but in no event later than 30
days following such termination), finding that the Executive was guilty of conduct constituting Cause. The notice provided to the Executive pursuant hereto shall
specify in detail the particulars of the conduct constituting Cause. If the boards of directors thereafter determine that such conduct did not constitute Cause and the
Executive’s employment hereunder is reinstated, then the Executive shall be entitled to receive back pay for the period following termination and continuing
through reinstatement, which amount will be paid in a single lump sum within 15 business days following reinstatement. If the Executive’s employment is not
reinstated as contemplated by the preceding sentence, then the termination of employment shall be deemed to have occurred pursuant to Section 3(d) of this
Agreement and the Executive shall be entitled to the compensation and benefits provided therein. For the purposes of this Agreement “Cause” means any of the
following:
(1)

a material act of personal dishonesty in performing Executive’s duties on behalf of the Company;

(2)
a willful misconduct that in the judgment of the boards of directors will likely cause economic damage to the Company or its
affiliates or injury to the business reputation of the Company or its affiliates;
(3)

a breach of fiduciary duty involving personal profit;

(4)

the intentional failure to perform stated duties under this Agreement after written notice thereof from the boards of directors;

(5)
a willful violation of any law, rule or regulation (other than minor or routine traffic violations or similar offenses) that reflects
adversely on the reputation of the Company or its
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affiliates, any felony conviction, any violation of law involving moral turpitude, or any violation of a final cease-and-desist order;
(6)

a material breach by the Executive of any provision of this Agreement.

No act, or failure to act, on the Executive’s part shall be considered “willful” unless he has acted, or failed to act, with an absence of good faith and without
reasonable belief that his action or failure to act was in the best interest of the Company.
(c)
Voluntary Termination by the Executive Without Good Reason . If the Executive terminates employment without Good Reason, the Executive
shall receive the Base Salary and expense reimbursement to which the Executive is entitled through the date on which termination becomes effective.
(d)
Involuntary Termination Without Cause and Voluntary Termination with Good Reason . With written notice to the Executive 30 days in
advance, the Company may terminate the Executive’s employment and this Agreement without Cause. Termination shall take effect at the end of the 30 day
period. With advance written notice to the Company as provided in clause (y), the Executive may terminate employment for Good Reason. If the Executive’s
employment terminates involuntarily without Cause or voluntarily but with Good Reason, the Executive shall be entitled to the benefits specified in Section 4 of
this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement a voluntary termination by the Executive shall be considered a voluntary termination with Good Reason if the
conditions stated in both clauses (x) and (y) of this Section 3(d) are satisfied:
(x)
a voluntary termination by the Executive shall be considered a voluntary termination with Good Reason if any of the following occur
without the Executive’s written consent, and the term Good Reason shall mean the occurrence of any of the following without the Executive’s written
consent:
(1)

a material diminution of the Executive’s Base Salary (unless the reduction is part of a Company-wide or executive-level
restructuring of compensation),

(2)

a material diminution of the Executive’s authority, duties, or responsibilities, or

(3)

a change in the geographic location at which the Executive must perform services for the Company by more than 25 miles
from such location at the effective date.

(y)
the Executive must give notice to the Company of the existence of one or more of the conditions described in clause (x) within 60 days
after the initial existence of the condition, and the Company shall have 30 days thereafter to remedy the condition. In addition, the Executive’s voluntary
termination because of the existence of one or more of the conditions described in clause (x) must occur within six months after the initial existence of the
condition.
4.

Severance Compensation.

(a)
Subject to the possibility that cash severance after employment termination might be delayed under Section 4(b), if the Executive’s employment
terminates involuntarily but without Cause or if the Executive voluntarily terminates employment with Good Reason, the Executive shall for 36 months and in
accordance with the Company’s regular pay practices continue to receive the Base Salary in effect at termination of employment. However, the Company and the
Executive acknowledge and agree that the
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compensation and benefits under this Section 4(a) shall not be payable if compensation and benefits are payable or shall have been paid to the Executive under
Section 5 of this Agreement.
(b)
If when employment termination occurs the Executive is a “specified employee” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code, if the cash
severance payment under Section 4(a) would be considered deferred compensation under Section 409A of the Code, and finally if an exemption from the sixmonth delay requirement of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code is not available, the Executive’s continued Base Salary under Section 4(a) for the first six months
after employment termination shall be paid to the Executive in a single lump sum without interest on the first business day of the seventh month after the month in
which the Executive’s employment terminates.
5.

Change in Control Benefits.

(a)
Change in Control Benefits . If a Change in Control occurs during the term of this Agreement and, thereafter during the then remaining term of
the Agreement, the Executive’s employment terminates involuntarily but without Cause or if the Executive voluntarily terminates employment with Good Reason,
the Company shall make or cause to be made a lump-sum payment to the Executive in an amount in cash equal to three times the Executive’s average annual
compensation. For this purpose, average annual compensation means the Executive’s taxable income reported by the Company or its affiliates for the five calendar
years immediately preceding the calendar year in which the Change in Control occurs. The payment required under this paragraph is payable no later than five
business days after the Executive’s termination of employment. If the Executive receives payment under Section 5(a), the Executive shall not be entitled to any
additional severance benefits under Section 4(a) of this Agreement.
(b)
Change in Control Defined . For purposes of this Agreement “Change in Control” means a change in control of the Company as defined in
Internal Revenue Section 409A of the Code and rules, regulations, and guidance of general application thereunder issued by the Department of the Treasury,
including a “change in ownership,” “change in effective control” or “change in ownership of a substantial portion of assets.”
(c)
Potential Limitation of Benefits Under Certain Circumstances . Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, in the event that the
aggregate payments or benefits to be made or afforded to the Executive under this Agreement or otherwise, which are deemed to be parachute payments as defined
in Section 280G of the Code or any successor thereof (the “Termination Benefits”), would be deemed to include an “excess parachute payment” under
Section 280G of the Code, then the Termination Benefits shall be reduced to a value which is $1.00 less than an amount equal to three times the Executive’s “base
amount,” as determined in accordance with Section 280G of the Code. The allocation of the reduction required hereby among the Termination Benefits shall first
be made from any cash severance benefit due under Section 5(a) of this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall result in a reduction of any
payments or benefits to which the Executive may be entitled upon termination of employment other than pursuant to Sections 4 and 5 hereof, or a reduction in the
payments and benefits specified, below zero.
6.

Confidentiality and Creative Work.

(a)
Non-disclosure . The Executive covenants and agrees not to reveal to any person, firm, or corporation any confidential information of any nature
concerning the Company or its business, or anything connected therewith. As used in this Section 6 the term “confidential information” means all of the
Company’s or the Association’s and the Company’s affiliates’ confidential and proprietary information and trade secrets in existence on the date hereof or existing
at any time during the term of this Agreement, including but not limited to:

5

(i)
financial information,

the whole or any portion or phase of any business plans, financial information, purchasing data, supplier data, accounting data, or other

(ii)
technical information,

the whole or any portion or phase of any research and development information, design procedures, algorithms or processes, or other

(iii)
sales information, and

the whole or any portion or phase of any marketing or sales information, sales records, customer lists, prices, sales projections, or other

(iv)
trade secrets, as defined from time to time by the laws of Missouri. This Section 6(a) does not prohibit disclosure required by an order of
a court having jurisdiction or a subpoena from an appropriate governmental agency or disclosure made by the Executive in the ordinary course of business and
within the scope of the Executive’s authority.
(b)
Return of Materials . The Executive agrees to immediately deliver or return to the Company upon termination, upon expiration of this
Agreement, or as soon thereafter as possible, all written information and any other similar items furnished by the Company or prepared by the Executive in
connection with the Executive’s services hereunder and to immediately delete all electronically stored data of the Company maintained on the Executive’s personal
computers and to return all Company-provided computers or communication devices. The Executive will retain no copies thereof after termination of this
Agreement or termination of the Executive’s employment.
(c)
Creative Work . The Executive agrees that all creative work and work product, including but not limited to all technology, business management
tools, processes, software, patents, trademarks, and copyrights developed by the Executive during the term of this Agreement, regardless of when or where such
work or work product was produced, constitutes work made for hire, all rights of which are owned by the Company. The Executive hereby assigns to the Company
all rights, title, and interest, whether by way of copyrights, trade secret, trademark, patent, or otherwise, in all such work or work product, regardless of whether the
same is subject to protection by patent, trademark, or copyright laws.
(d)
Affiliates’ Confidential Information is Covered; Confidentiality Obligation Survives Termination . For purposes of this Agreement, the term
“affiliate” of the Company includes any entity that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with the Company. The rights and obligations set forth in this 6 shall survive termination of this Agreement.
(e)
Injunctive Relief . The Executive acknowledges that it is impossible to measure in money the damages that will accrue to the Company if the
Executive fails to observe the obligations imposed by this Section 6. Accordingly, if the Company institutes an action to enforce the provisions hereof, the
Executive hereby waives the claim or defense that an adequate remedy at law is available to the Company, and the Executive agrees not to urge in any such action
the claim or defense that an adequate remedy at law exists. The confidentiality and remedies provisions of this Section 6 shall be in addition to and shall not be
deemed to supersede or restrict, limit, or impair the Company’s rights under applicable state or federal statute or regulation dealing with or providing a remedy for
the wrongful disclosure, misuse, or misappropriation of trade secrets or proprietary or confidential information.
7.

Competition After Employment Termination.

(a)
Covenant Not to Solicit Employees . The Executive agrees not to, directly or indirectly, solicit or employ the services of any officer or employee
of the Company (including an individual who was an officer or employee of the Company during the one year period following the Executive’s termination) for
two years after the Executive’s employment termination.
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(b)

Covenant Not to Compete .

(i)
The Executive covenants and agrees not to compete directly or indirectly with the Company for one year after employment termination.
For purposes of this Section 7(b):
(1)

the term compete means:
(i)

providing financial products or services on behalf of any financial institution for any person residing in the territory,

(ii)
assisting (other than through the performance of ministerial or clerical duties) any financial institution in providing
financial products or services to any person residing in the territory, or
(iii)
inducing or attempting to induce any person who was a customer of the Company at the date of the Executive’s
employment termination to seek financial products or services from another financial institution.
(2)

the words directly or indirectly mean:

(i)
acting as a consultant, officer, director, independent contractor, or employee of any financial institution in
competition with the Company in the territory, or
(ii)
communicating to such financial institution the names or addresses or any financial information concerning any
person who was a customer of the Company when the Executive’s employment terminated.
(3)
the term customer means any person to whom the Company is providing financial products or services on the date of the
Executive’s employment termination or within one year thereafter.
(4)
the term financial institution means any bank, savings association, or bank or savings association holding company, or any
other institution, the business of which is engaging in activities that are financial in nature or incidental to such financial activities as described in Section 4(k) of
the Association Holding Company Act of 1956, other than the Company or any of its affiliated corporations.
(5)
financial product or service means any product or service that a financial institution or a financial holding company could
offer by engaging in any activity that is financial in nature or incidental to such a financial activity under Section 4(k) of the Association Holding Company Act of
1956 and that is offered by the Company or an affiliate on the date of the Executive’s employment termination, including but not limited to banking activities and
activities that are closely related and a proper incident to banking.
(6)

the term person means any individual or individuals, corporation, partnership, fiduciary or association.

(7)

the term territory means the area within a 25-mile radius of any office of the Company at the date of the Executive’s

employment termination.
(ii)
If any provision of this section or any word, phrase, clause, sentence or other portion thereof (including, without limitation, the
geographical and temporal restrictions contained therein) is held to be unenforceable or invalid for any reason, the unenforceable or invalid provision or portion
shall
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be modified or deleted so that the provisions hereof, as modified, are legal and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted under applicable law.
(iii)
The Executive acknowledges that the Company’s willingness to enter into this Agreement and to make the payments contemplated by
Sections 3 and 4 of this Agreement is conditioned on the Executive’s acceptance of the covenants set forth in Sections 6 and 7 of this Agreement and that the
Company would not have entered into this Agreement without such covenants in force.
(c)
Injunctive and Other Relief . Because of the unique character of the services to be rendered by the Executive hereunder, the Executive
understands that the Company would not have an adequate remedy at law for the material breach or threatened breach by the Executive of any one or more of the
Executive’s covenants in this Section 7. Accordingly, the Executive agrees that the Company’s remedies for a breach of this Section 7 include, but are not limited
to, (x) forfeiture of any money representing accrued salary, contingent payments, or other fringe benefits (including any amount payable pursuant to Section 4) due
and payable to the Executive during the period of any breach by Executive, and (y) a suit in equity by the Company to enjoin the Executive from the breach or
threatened breach of such covenants. The Executive hereby waives the claim or defense that an adequate remedy at law is available to the Company and the
Executive agrees not to urge in any such action the claim or defense that an adequate remedy at law exists. Nothing herein shall be construed to prohibit the
Company from pursuing any other or additional remedies for the breach or threatened breach.
(d)
Section 7 Survives Termination But Is Void After a Change in Control . The rights and obligations set forth in this Section 7 shall survive
termination of this Agreement. However, Section 7 shall become null and void effective immediately upon a Change in Control.
8.

Compliance with Internal Revenue Code Section 409A.

(a)
The Executive will be deemed to have a termination of employment for purposes of determining the timing of any payments that are classified as
deferred compensation only upon a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A.
(b)
If at the time of the Executive’s separation from service, (i) the Executive is a “specified employee” (within the meaning of Section 409A and
using the methodology selected by the Company) and (ii) the Company makes a good faith determination that an amount payable or the benefits to be provided
hereunder constitutes deferred compensation (within the meaning of Section 409A), the payment of which is required to be delayed pursuant to the six-month delay
rule of Section 409A in order to avoid taxes or penalties under Section 409A, then the Company will not pay the entire amount on the otherwise scheduled
payment date but will instead pay on the scheduled payment date the maximum amount permissible in order to comply with Section 409A (i.e., any amount that
satisfies an exception under the Section 409A rules from being categorized as deferred compensation) and will pay the remaining amount (if any) in a lump sum on
the first business day of the seventh month after the month in which the Executive’s employment terminates.
(c)
To the extent the Executive would be subject to an additional 20% tax imposed on certain deferred compensation arrangements pursuant to
Section 409A as a result of any provision of this Agreement, such provision shall be deemed amended to the minimum extent necessary to avoid application of
such tax and the parties shall promptly execute any amendment reasonably necessary to implement this Section 8. The Executive and the Company agree to
cooperate to make such amendment to the terms of this Agreement as may be necessary to avoid the imposition of penalties and taxes under Section 409A;
provided, however, that the Executive agrees that any such amendment shall provide the Executive with economically equivalent payments and benefits, and the
Executive agrees that any such amendment will not materially increase the cost to, or liability of, the Company with respect to any payment.
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(d)
To the extent that any right to reimbursement of expenses or payment of any in-kind benefit under this Agreement constitutes nonqualified
deferred compensation (within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code), (i) any such expense reimbursement shall be made by the Company no later than the last
day of the taxable year following the taxable year in which such expense was incurred by Executive, (ii) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits shall not be
subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit, and (iii) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefits provided during any taxable
year shall not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefits to be provided in any other taxable year; provided that the foregoing clause shall
not be violated with regard to expenses reimbursed under any arrangement covered by Section 105(b) of the Code solely because such expenses are subject to a
limit related to the period the arrangement is in effect.
(e)
For purposes of this Agreement, Section 409A shall refer to Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury
regulations and any other authoritative guidance issued thereunder.
9.

Miscellaneous.
(a)

Successors and Assigns .

(i)
This Agreement shall be binding upon the Company and any successor to the Company, including any persons acquiring directly or
indirectly all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company by purchase, merger, consolidation, reorganization, or otherwise. But this Agreement and
the Company’s obligations under this Agreement are not otherwise assignable, transferable, or delegable by the Company. By agreement in form and substance
satisfactory to the Executive, the Company shall require any successor to all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Company expressly to assume and
agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent the Company would be required to perform had no succession occurred.
(ii)
This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Executive’s personal or legal representatives, executors,
administrators, successors, heirs, distributees, and legatees.
(iii)
Without written consent of the other parties, no party shall assign, transfer, or delegate this Agreement or any rights or obligations under
this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. Without limiting the generality or effect of the foregoing, the Executive’s right to receive payments hereunder
is not assignable or transferable, whether by pledge, creation of a security interest, or otherwise, except for a transfer by the Executive’s will or by the laws of
descent and distribution. If the Executive attempts an assignment or transfer that is contrary to this Section 9(a), the Company shall have no liability to pay any
amount to the assignee or transferee.
(b)
Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Forum . This Agreement shall be construed under and governed by the internal laws of the State of Missouri,
without giving effect to any conflict of laws provision or rule that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than Missouri. By entering into
this Agreement, the Executive acknowledges that the Executive is subject to the jurisdiction of both the federal and state courts in Missouri.
(c)
Entire Agreement . This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement of the parties concerning the employment of the Executive by the Company.
Any oral or written statements, representations, agreements, or understandings made or entered into prior to or contemporaneously with the execution of this
Agreement are hereby rescinded, revoked, and rendered null and void by the parties.
(d)
Notices . All notices, requests, demands, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if
delivered by hand or mailed, certified or registered
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mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid. Unless otherwise changed by notice, notice shall be properly addressed to the Executive if addressed to the
address of the Executive on the books and records of the Company at the time of the delivery of such notice, and properly addressed to the Company if addressed
to the boards of directors of Bancshares and the Association.
(e)
Severability . If there is a conflict between any provision of this Agreement and any statute, regulation, or judicial precedent, the latter shall
prevail, but the affected provisions of this Agreement shall be curtailed and limited solely to the extent necessary to bring them within the requirements of law. If
any provisions of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be indefinite, invalid, void or voidable, or otherwise unenforceable, the remainder
of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect unless that would clearly be contrary to the intentions of the parties or would result in an injustice.
(f)
Captions and Counterparts . The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience. The captions do not define, limit, or describe the scope
or intent of this Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which together
shall constitute one and the same instrument.
(g)
No Duty to Mitigate . The Executive shall not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for in this Agreement by seeking
other employment. Moreover, provided the Executive is not in breach of any obligation under Sections 6 and 7 of this Agreement, the amount of any payment
provided for in this Agreement shall not be reduced by any compensation earned or benefits provided as the result of employment of the Executive or as a result of
the Executive being self-employed after employment termination.
(h)
Amendment and Waiver . This Agreement may not be amended, released, discharged, abandoned, changed, or modified in any manner, except
by an instrument in writing signed by each of the parties hereto. The failure of any party hereto to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement shall
not be construed to be a waiver of any such provision, nor affect the validity of this Agreement or any part thereof or the right of any party thereafter to enforce
each and every such provision. No waiver or any breach of this Agreement shall be held to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach.
(i)
Required Provisions . Any payments made to the Executive pursuant to this Agreement, or otherwise, are subject to, and conditioned upon, their
compliance with 12 U.S.C. Section 1828(k) and FDIC Regulation 12 C.F.R. Part 359, Golden Parachute and Indemnification Payments.
(j)
Source of Payments . Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, to the extent payments and benefits, as provided for
under this Agreement, are paid or received by the Executive under an employment agreement in effect between the Executive and the Association, the payments
and benefits paid by the Association will be subtracted from any amount or benefit due simultaneously to the Executive under similar provisions of this
Agreement. Payments will be allocated in proportion to the level of activity and the time expended by the Executive on activities related to the Company,
respectively, as determined by the Company.
*

*

*

*

*

[ signature page follows ]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Employment Agreement as of the date first written above.
CENTRAL FEDERAL BANCSHARES, INC.
By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ William A. Stoltz
William A. Stoltz
President and Chief Executive Officer

CENTRAL FEDERAL SAVINGS AND
LOAN ASSOCIATION OF ROLLA
By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ William A. Stoltz
William A. Stoltz
President and Chief Executive Officer
EXECUTIVE
/s/ William A. Stoltz
William A. Stoltz

[Signature Page – Central Federal Bancshares, Inc. Employment Agreement – Stoltz]

Exhibit 10.3
CENTRAL FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION OF ROLLA
CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of January 12, 2016, by and between Central Federal Savings and Loan Association of Rolla (the “Association”),
Barbara E. Hamilton (the “Executive”) and Central Federal Bancshares, Inc. (“Bancshares”), a Missouri corporation and the holding company of the Association,
as guarantor (the “Agreement”).
WHEREAS , the Association recognizes the importance of Executive to the Association’s operations and wishes to protect her position with the
Association in the event of a change in control of the Association or Bancshares for the period provided for in this Agreement.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows.
1. Term of Agreement.
(a) The term of this Agreement shall include: (i) the initial term, consisting of the period commencing on the date of this Agreement (the “Effective
Date”) and ending on the first anniversary of the Effective Date, plus (ii) any and all extensions of the initial term made pursuant to Section 1(b) of this Agreement.
(b) On or before the 90 th day prior to the first anniversary date of this Agreement and on or before the 90 th day prior to each anniversary thereafter, the
Board of Directors of the Association or designated committee of the Board (“Board”) shall consult with the Chief Executive Officer of the Association for
purposes of determining whether to extend the term of the Agreement beyond the expiration date set forth in Section 1(a) of this Agreement or as extended under
this Section 1(b) of this Agreement.
(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Section 1 to the contrary, this Agreement shall terminate if Executive or the Association terminates Executive’s
employment prior to a Change in Control (as defined in this Agreement).
2. Change in Control.
(a) Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control of the Association or Bancshares followed at any time during the term of this Agreement by the
termination of Executive’s employment in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, other than for Just Cause, as defined in Section 2(c) of this Agreement, the
provisions of Section 3 of this Agreement shall apply. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control, Executive shall have the right to elect to voluntarily terminate
her employment at any time during the term of this Agreement following an event constituting “Good Reason.”
“Good Reason” means, unless Executive has consented in writing thereto, the occurrence following a Change in Control, of any of the following:
(i) a material diminution of the Executive’s Base Salary (unless the reduction is part of a company-wide or executive-level restructuring of
compensation),
(ii) a material diminution of the Executive’s authority, duties, or responsibilities, or
(iii) a change in the geographic location at which the Executive must perform services for the Association by more than 25 miles from such
location at the Effective Date.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change in Control” means a change in control of the Association or Bancshares as defined in Internal Revenue
Section 409A of the Code and rules, regulations, and guidance of general application thereunder issued by the Department of the Treasury, including a “change in
ownership,” “change in effective control” or “change in ownership of a substantial portion of assets.”
(c) Executive shall not have the right to receive termination benefits pursuant to Section 3 hereof upon termination for Just Cause. The Board may, by
written notice to the Executive, immediately terminate the Executive’s employment and this Agreement at any time for Just Cause. The Association shall deliver to
the Executive a copy of the resolution duly adopted by the Board (after reasonable notice to the Executive and an opportunity for the Executive, together with the
Executive’s counsel, to be heard before the Board, such meeting and the opportunity to be heard to be held prior to, or as soon as reasonably practicable following,
termination, but in no event later than 30 days following such termination), finding that the Executive was guilty of conduct constituting Just Cause. The notice
provided to the Executive pursuant hereto shall specify in detail the particulars of the conduct constituting Just Cause. Executive shall not have the right to receive
compensation or other benefits for any period after termination for Just Cause. During the period beginning on the date of the Notice of Termination for Just Cause
pursuant to Section 4 hereof through the Date of Termination, stock options granted to Executive under any stock option plan shall not be exercisable nor shall any
unvested stock awards granted to Executive under any stock benefit plan of the Association, the Company or any subsidiary or affiliate thereof, vest. At the Date of
Termination, such stock options and any such unvested stock awards shall become null and void and shall not be exercisable by or delivered to Executive at any
time subsequent to such termination for Just Cause. If the Board thereafter determines that such conduct did not constitute Cause, the Executive’s employment
hereunder is reinstated, and the Executive shall be entitled to receive back pay for the period following termination and continuing through reinstatement, which
amount will be paid in a single lump sum within 15 business days following reinstatement. If the Executive’s employment is not reinstated as contemplated by the
preceding sentence, then the termination of employment shall be deemed to have occurred pursuant to Section 2(a) of this Agreement and the Executive shall be
entitled to the compensation and benefits provided herein. For the purposes of this Agreement “Just Cause” means any of the following:
(1)

a material act of personal dishonesty in performing Executive’s duties on behalf of the Association;

(2)
a willful misconduct that in the judgment of the Board will likely cause economic damage to the Association or its affiliates or
injury to the business reputation of the Association or its affiliates;
(3)

a breach of fiduciary duty involving personal profit;

(4)

the intentional failure to perform stated duties under this Agreement after written notice thereof from the Board;

(5)
a willful violation of any law, rule or regulation (other than minor or routine traffic violations or similar offenses) that reflects
adversely on the reputation of the Association or its affiliates, any felony conviction, any violation of law involving moral turpitude, or any violation of a final
cease-and-desist order;
(6)

a material breach by the Executive of any provision of this Agreement.

No act, or failure to act, on the Executive’s part shall be considered “willful” unless she has acted, or failed to act, with an absence of good faith and without
reasonable belief that her action or failure to act was in the best interest of the Association.
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3. Termination Benefits.
(a) If Executive’s employment is voluntarily (in accordance with Section 2(a) of this Agreement) or involuntarily terminated within one year of a Change
in Control, Executive shall receive a lump sum cash payment equal to 12 months of Executive’s base salary. Such payment shall be based on Executive’s base
salary in effect as of her termination date and made not later than five days following Executive’s termination of employment under this Section 3.
(b) Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this Section 3, in no event shall the aggregate payments or benefits to be made or afforded to Executive
under said paragraphs (the “Termination Benefits”) constitute an “excess parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code or any successor thereto, and to
avoid such a result, Termination Benefits will be reduced, if necessary, to an amount (the “Non-Triggering Amount”), the value of which is $1.00 less than an
amount equal to three times Executive’s “base amount,” as determined in accordance with said Section 280G. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall result in a
reduction of any payments or benefits to which the Executive may be entitled upon termination of employment other than pursuant to Section 3.
4. Notice of Termination.
(a) Any purported termination by the Association or by Executive shall be communicated by Notice of Termination to the other party hereto. For purposes
of this Agreement, a “Notice of Termination” shall mean a written notice which shall indicate the specific termination provision in this Agreement relied upon and
shall set forth in detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated.
(b) “Date of Termination” shall mean the date specified in the Notice of Termination (which, in the case of a termination for Just Cause, shall not be less
than 30 days from the date such Notice of Termination is given).
5. Source of Payments.
All payments provided in this Agreement shall be timely paid in cash or check from the general funds of the Association. Bancshares, however,
unconditionally guarantees payment and provision of all amounts and benefits due hereunder to Executive and, if such amounts and benefits due from the
Association are not timely paid or provided by the Association, such amounts and benefits shall be paid or provided by Bancshares.
6. Effect on Prior Agreements and Existing Benefit Plans.
This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties hereto and supersedes any prior agreement between the Association and Executive,
except that this Agreement shall not affect or operate to reduce any benefit or compensation inuring to Executive of a kind elsewhere provided. No provision of
this Agreement shall be interpreted to mean that Executive is subject to receiving fewer benefits than those available to her without reference to this Agreement.
Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon Executive the right to continue in the employ of the Association or shall impose on the Association any obligation to
employ or retain Executive in its employ for any period.
7. No Attachment.
(a) Except as required by law, no right to receive payments under this Agreement shall be subject to anticipation, commutation, alienation, sale,
assignment, encumbrance, charge, pledge, or hypothecation or
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to execution, attachment, levy or similar process or assignment by operation of law, and any attempt, voluntary or involuntary, to affect any such action shall be
null, void and of no effect.
(b) This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, Executive, the Association and their respective successors and assigns.
8. Modification and Waiver.
(a) This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto.
(b) No term or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived, nor shall there be any estoppel against the enforcement of any provision
of this Agreement, except by written instrument of the party charged with such waiver or estoppel. No such written waiver shall be deemed a continuing waiver
unless specifically stated therein, and each such waiver shall operate only as to the specific term or condition waived and shall not constitute a waiver of such term
or condition for the future or as to any act other than that specifically waived.
9. Required Provisions.
The provisions of this Section 9 shall apply notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary.
(a) The Board may terminate the Executive’s employment at any time, but any termination by the Association, other than termination for Just Cause, shall
not prejudice the Executive’s right to compensation or other benefits under this Agreement. The Executive shall not have the right to receive compensation or other
benefits for any period after termination for Just Cause as defined in this Agreement.
(b) If the Executive is suspended from office and/or temporarily prohibited from participating in the conduct of the Association’s affairs by a notice
served under Section 8(e)(3) or 8(g)(1) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, 12 U.S.C. Section 1818(e)(3) or (g)(1), the Association’s obligations under this
Agreement shall be suspended as of the date of service, unless stayed by appropriate proceedings. If the charges in the notice are dismissed, the Association may,
in its discretion: (i) pay the Executive all or part of the compensation withheld while its contract obligations were suspended; and (ii) reinstate (in whole or in part)
any of the obligations which were suspended.
(c) If the Executive is removed and/or permanently prohibited from participating in the conduct of the Association’s affairs by an order issued under
Section 8(e)(4) or 8(g)(1) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, 12 U.S.C. Section 1818(e)(4) or (g)(1), all obligations of the Association under this Agreement
shall terminate as of the effective date of the order, but vested rights of the contracting parties shall not be affected.
(d) If the Association is in default as defined in Section 3(x)(1) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, 12 U.S.C. Section 1813(x)(1), all obligations under
this Agreement shall terminate as of the date of default, but this paragraph shall not affect any vested rights of the contracting parties.
(e) All obligations under this Agreement shall terminate, except to the extent determined that continuation of the Agreement is necessary for the continued
operation of the Association: (i) by the Comptroller of the Currency, or her designee (the “Comptroller”), at the time the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) enters into an agreement to provide assistance to or on behalf of the Association under the authority contained in Section 13(c) of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Act, 12 U.S.C. Section 1823(c), or (ii) by the Comptroller at the time the Comptroller approves a supervisory merger to resolve problems

4

related to the operations of the Association or when the Association is determined by the Comptroller to be in an unsafe or unsound condition. Any rights of the
parties that have already vested, however, shall not be affected by such action.
(f) Any payments made to the Executive pursuant to this Agreement, or otherwise, are subject to, and conditioned upon, their compliance with 12 U.S.C.
Section 1828(k) and FDIC Regulation 12 C.F.R. Part 359, Golden Parachute and Indemnification Payments.
10. Section 409A of the Code.
(a) The Executive will be deemed to have a termination of employment for purposes of determining the timing of any payments that are classified as
deferred compensation only upon a “separation from service” within the meaning of Section 409A.
(b) If at the time of the Executive’s separation from service, (i) the Executive is a “specified employee” (within the meaning of Section 409A and using
the methodology selected by the Association) and (ii) the Association makes a good faith determination that an amount payable or the benefits to be provided
hereunder constitutes deferred compensation (within the meaning of Section 409A), the payment of which is required to be delayed pursuant to the six-month delay
rule of Section 409A in order to avoid taxes or penalties under Section 409A, then the Association will not pay the entire amount on the otherwise scheduled
payment date but will instead pay on the scheduled payment date the maximum amount permissible in order to comply with Section 409A (i.e., any amount that
satisfies an exception under the Section 409A rules from being categorized as deferred compensation) and will pay the remaining amount (if any) in a lump sum on
the first business day of the seventh month after the month in which the Executive’s employment terminates.
(c) To the extent the Executive would be subject to an additional 20% tax imposed on certain deferred compensation arrangements pursuant to
Section 409A as a result of any provision of this Agreement, such provision shall be deemed amended to the minimum extent necessary to avoid application of
such tax and the parties shall promptly execute any amendment reasonably necessary to implement this Section 10(c). The Executive and the Association agree to
cooperate to make such amendment to the terms of this Agreement as may be necessary to avoid the imposition of penalties and taxes under Section 409A;
provided, however, that the Executive agrees that any such amendment shall provide the Executive with economically equivalent payments and benefits, and the
Executive agrees that any such amendment will not materially increase the cost to, or liability of, the Association with respect to any payment.
(d) To the extent that any right to reimbursement of expenses or payment of any in-kind benefit under this Agreement constitutes nonqualified deferred
compensation (within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code), (i) any such expense reimbursement shall be made by the Association no later than the last day of
the taxable year following the taxable year in which such expense was incurred by Executive, (ii) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits shall not be subject
to liquidation or exchange for another benefit, and (iii) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefits provided during any taxable year
shall not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement or in-kind benefits to be provided in any other taxable year; provided that the foregoing clause shall not be
violated with regard to expenses reimbursed under any arrangement covered by Section 105(b) of the Code solely because such expenses are subject to a limit
related to the period the arrangement is in effect.
(e) For purposes of this Agreement, Section 409A shall refer to Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury
regulations and any other authoritative guidance issued thereunder.
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11. Miscellaneous.
(a) If, for any reason, any provision of this Agreement, or any part of any provision, is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect any other provision of
this Agreement or any part of such provision not held so invalid, and each such other provision and part thereof shall to the full extent consistent with law continue
in full force and effect.
(b) The headings of sections and paragraphs herein are included solely for convenience of reference and shall not control the meaning or interpretation of
any of the provisions of this Agreement. In addition, references herein to the masculine shall apply to both the masculine and the feminine.
(c) Except to the extent preempted by federal law, the validity, interpretation, performance, and enforcement of this Agreement shall be governed by the
laws of the State of Missouri, without regard to principles of conflicts of law of that State.
(d) All reasonable legal fees paid or incurred by Executive pursuant to any dispute or question of interpretation relating to this Agreement shall be paid or
reimbursed by the Association, only if Executive is successful pursuant to a legal judgment, arbitration or settlement.
(e) The Association and Bancshares shall require any successor or assignee, whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise, to
all or substantially all of the business or assets of the Association or Bancshares, expressly and unconditionally to assume and agree to perform the Association’s
and Bancshares’s obligations under this Agreement, in the same manner and to the same extent that the Association and Bancshares would be required to perform
if no such succession or assignment had taken place.
*

*

*

*

*

[ signature page follows ]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.
CENTRAL FEDERAL SAVINGS AND
LOAN ASSOCIATION OF ROLLA

EXECUTIVE

By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ Barbara E. Hamilton

/s/ William A. Stoltz
William A. Stoltz
President and Chief Executive Officer

CENTRAL FEDERAL BANCSHARES, INC.
(as guarantor of Central Federal Savings and Loan
Association of Rolla hereunder)
By:
Name:
Title:

/s/ William A. Stoltz
William A. Stoltz
President and Chief Executive Officer

[Signature Page – Change in Control Agreement – Hamilton]

Barbara E. Hamilton

Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF CENTRAL FEDERAL BANCSHARES, INC.
Subsidiary

Central Federal Savings and Loan
Association of Rolla

Percentage Ownership

Jurisdiction of Incorporation


100%

United States



Exhibit 31
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, William A. Stoltz, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Central Federal Bancshares, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

5.

a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiary, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors:
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2016

/s/ William A. Stoltz
William A. Stoltz
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial
Officer)

Exhibit 32
Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
William A. Stoltz, President and Chief Executive Officer of Central Federal Bancshares, Inc. ( “Central Federal
Bancshares”), certifies in his capacity as an officer of Central Federal Bancshares that he has reviewed the annual
report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 (the “Report”) and that to the best of his knowledge:
1.

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and

2.

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of Central Federal Bancshares.

Date: March 30, 2016

/s/ William A. Stoltz
William A. Stoltz
President and Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial
Officer)

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Central Federal Bancshares
and will be retained by Central Federal Bancshares and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its
staff upon request.

